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OUR VISION
 WE ARE THE GLOBAL LEADER IN GEOTHERMAL ENERGY 

DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES 

WITH RECOGNIZED EXPERTISE IN: 

• EXPLORATION

• DRILLING

• RESERVOIR MANAGEMENT

• FLUID COLLECTION AND RECYCLING SYSTEM

• ENGINEERING, PROCUREMENT AND CONSTRUCTION 

• POWER PLANT OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

• ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

OUR MISSION
 WE ARE AN ENTERPRISE WITH CORE BUSINESS 

IN GEOTHERMAL AND RENEWABLE ENERGY 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTED TO DELIVER SUPERIOR 

BENEFITS TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS THROUGH HIGH-

CALIBER PERFORMANCE IN ALL OUR UNDERTAKINGS. 
4
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OUR BUSINESS
 At 1,199 MW total installed capacity, PNOC Energy Development Corpora-

tion (EDC) is the Philippines’ largest integrated geothermal energy company 

employing more than 2,600 people in five project sites all over the country.

 Created on March 5, 1976, the company has been exploring and develop-

ing sustainable, indigenous energy resources to reduce the country’s depen-

dence on imported fuel. We own and  operate the following steam fields: 

Bacman Geothermal Production Field (BGPF), Leyte Geothermal Production 

Field (LGPF), Mindanao Geothermal Production Field (MGPF), Northern Negros 

Geothermal Production Field (NNGPF), and Southern Negros Geothermal Pro-

duction Field (SNGPF). 

 In 2006, the company became a power plant operator with the handover of 

the 130-MW Upper Mahiao Power Plant, the first geothermal project built un-

der the Build Operate Transfer (BOT) mechanism. In 2007, EDC commissioned 

the country’s first merchant power plant, the 49-MW Northern Negros Geo-

thermal Power Plant followed by the handover of eight more BOT geothermal 

generation plants in Leyte. Leyte is the acclaimed world’s largest wet steam 

field and is home to the 232-MW Malitbog power plant, the world’s largest 

geothermal power station under one roof.

 EDC became a subsidiary of Red Vulcan Holdings Corporation on Novem-

ber 29, 2007 after the successful sale of 60% controlling stakes. Red Vulcan 

Holdings Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of First Gen Corporation, a 

publicly-listed entity. The ultimate parent of EDC is First Philippine Holdings 

Corporation. 

5
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MY FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:

 The privatization of EDC heralds a new beginning, a 

turning point in the journey of a company reborn into the tide 

of competition and globalization.  The synergy of two of the 

country’s most resilient companies has created a formidable 

team, making the consolidation argument even stronger as EDC 

and First Gen move in tandem to create a partnership that will 

play a major role in the energy industry.

 In 2007, EDC made a much-needed breakthrough by 

pushing the privatization agenda in the fairest and most 

transparent manner possible. The fairness of the price is 

important, as is confidence that new ownership will provide 

new platforms for growth, preferably reinforced by the spirit 

of private sector competition.

    A NEW

beginning

M E S S A G E  O F  T H E  C H A I R M A N

7

PNOC AR 07 05308 7pm_corctd_5-31.indd   7PNOC AR 07 05308 7pm_corctd_5-31.indd   7 5/31/08   5:55:51 PM5/31/08   5:55:51 PM



 EDC aims to be the world’s top producer 

of geothermal power. First Gen aims to be 

the premier power generator in the country 

and abroad. As we fold our projects into 

a cohesive expansion objective, we will 

capitalize on our acquired geothermal 

expertise, coupled with a robust financial 

health to provide you with the biggest 

power generation services delivered by a 

wholly Filipino-owned enterprise. Other 

than increasing our market prowess, we 

take more pride in advancing an energy 

business where the Filipino’s technical and 

management expertise are highly valued 

and is second to none. 

 After the successful privatization, the 

new EDC is embarking on a fresh wave of 

business objectives. We will continue EDC’s 

growth following three expansion strategies: 

organic growth by developing new geothermal 

fields estimated at around 280 MW to 310 MW 

in Nasulo, Mindanao, Dauin, Southern Leyte, 

Rangas, Tanawon, and Kayabon; acquisition 

of the geothermal power plants of the 

National Power Corporation which earmarked 

the sale of close to 1,200 MW; and overseas 

expansion, particularly in Indonesia where an 

estimated 20,000 MW of geothermal reserves 

are waiting to be developed. 

 Corporate governance remains a prior-

ity policy of your Board. We are satisfied to 

know that EDC has already written its own 

Code of Conduct and Business Ethics even 

when it was still a government corporation. 

Checks and balances have been institutional-

ized in the Board Committees with three in-

dependent directors sitting in the Board. The 

Board’s unanimous approval of the Corporate 

Governance Manual galvanizes EDC’s commit-

ment to the tenets of transparency, fairness 

and accountability.  

 Finally, any company 

aiming to grow, and in par-

ticular, to grow on the glob-

al stage, will have to ac-

quire the ability to put the 

right people on the ground. 

We assure our employees 

that we will continue to 

nurture a workforce that 

can effectively compete in 

the new business fronts by 

recruiting and maintaining 

technical and professional 

expertise.

 The new EDC has a 

new vision, and it has the 

strength to build long-term 

viability. I can assure you, 

on behalf of your Board that 

we will build more value for 

the company’s expanding 

business base. We regard 

ourselves at the start of a new 

and exciting era. From where 

we stand, we see a brighter 

and greener horizon. 

 In 2008, the transforma-

tion of EDC would have be-

come one of the most enviable 

among the privatized indus-

tries. The great poet Virgil 

once said, “Look with favor 

upon a bold beginning”. 

 My fellow shareholders, 

indeed, we will.

Oscar M. Lopez

8
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OUR VALUED SHAREHOLDERS,

 While your company has been successful in the past years as a state-owned 

enterprise, the success of its privatization in 2007 provided the impetus to pursue 

EDC’s expansion goal.

 In less than a year since EDC’s debut in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on 

December 13, 2006, the company moved full steam ahead to achieve full privatization 

on November 21, 2007. On July 10, 2007, EDC conducted its follow-on offering of 

secondary shares. EDC was a bright red dot on the radar screen of global investors 

as the frenzy to participate in the sale of Government’s 60% controlling shares 

prompted the 24 pre-qualifi ed bidders to form four consortiums. In the end, Red 

Vulcan Holdings controlled by First Gen Corp. emerged with the best bid after 

vying against the three other remaining bidders.

10
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R E P O R T  O F  T H E  P R E S I D E N T / C E O

A WHOLE 

new light
11
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  After a brief period of consolidation, I would 

like to assure both our shareholders and employees 

that EDC is in the good hands of First Gen Corp., 

another wholly-owned Filipino company which 

shares our vision of making EDC a world-class 

Filipino enterprise. 

STRONGER FINANCIAL STANDING

 The company’s fi nancial performance in 

2007 was characterized by enhanced profi tability, 

better liquidity, and stronger fi nancial standing. 

 In 2007, EDC generated PhP8.65 billion in 

net income, 26% higher than the previous year’s 

PhP6.86 billion. Recurring net income improved by 

23% jumping to PhP6.21 billion in 2007 compared 

to PhP5.1 billion in 2006. Earnings per share 

increased by 2% notching to PhP0.57 in 2007 versus 

PhP0.56 in 2006. These made shareholders’ equity 

higher in 2007 at PhP34.85 billion compared to 

PhP27.37 billion in 2006. A total of PhP1.48 billion 

in cash dividends were paid to shareholders.  

 The adoption of the International Financial 

Reporting Committee (IFRIC) 12 overhauled 

our recording system. IFRIC 12 simply covers 

assets constructed under the Concession 

Agreement. Before, we carried in our balance 

sheet production wells, power plants and 

property, plant and equipment, which form part 

of our asset base. 

 With IFRIC 12 and its adoption, all of these 

assets have been de-recognized in our books 

of accounts. We are not allowed to charge 

depreciation or amortization pertaining to 

these assets. But we are allowed to recognize 

construction revenues for assets constructed 

under these concession agreements. 

 Construction costs have been allowed 

to be recovered against what we were able 

to collect in 2007. IFRIC 12 basically made an 

impact on the construction cost of Northern 

Negros Geothermal Project (NNGP), which was 

completed in mid-2007.

 As a result, revenues in 

2007 posted PhP18.78 billion, 

27% lower than the PhP25.72 

billion posted in 2006. Also, 

the declining infl ation indices 

and lower billed volume for 

electricity sales infl uenced 

the revenue decline last 

year. More than a third of the 

revenues came from power 

sales totaling PhP15.81 billion. 

The remaining PhP2.97 billion 

was generated from drilling 

services, interest income 

from concession services, and 

construction revenues.

 A stronger Philippine Peso 

versus the US Dollar in 2007 

coupled with the reduction 

of the nominated energy of 

the Leyte BOT power plants 

infl uenced the 8.4% decline of 

electricity sales to PhP11.29 

billion in 2007 from PhP12.32 

billion in 2006. But revenues 

from steam sales increased by 

8.3% to PhP4.52 billion in 2007 

from PhP4.17 billion in 2006 as 

a result of the higher infl ation 

indices at an average PhP0.0306/

KWh, and NPC’s recognition of 

the PhP321 million disputed 

shortfall generation billings 

of Tongonan 1 between 

1985 to 1989. Other revenue 

sources like third party drilling 

contracts generated PhP624 

million, 136% higher than 

the PhP261 million earned 

in 2006. 

 Operating expenses de-

creased by 43% to PhP8.80 bil-
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lion mainly due to lower pur-

chased services and utilities, 

and construction costs. More-

over, EDC was able to save on 

BOT payments in LGPF when 

fees went down to PhP2.10 bil-

lion in 2007 from PhP4.78 bil-

lion in 2006. BOT Contractors 

CalEnergy and Ormat have 

turned over almost 600 MW of 

geothermal power plants in 

various dates last year.

 Meanwhile, fi nancial fun-

damentals have been rein-

forced after prepayments of 

more expensive loans amount-

ing to PhP9.02 billion. Part of 

the IPO proceeds was used to 

pay the long-term debts saving 

the company some PhP380 mil-

lion in interest payments. To-

tal liabilities have gone down 

by 40% to PhP30.21 billion by 

end-2007. Even in the absence 

of government guarantee, we 

established additional credit 

lines of PhP2.4 billion from 

Metrobank, Exim Bank, DBP 

and BanCom.

 For being the biggest IPO in 

2006, the PSE bestowed the Bull 

Run Award to EDC in November 

2007. Shortly after, PSE included 

EDC as among the companies 

comprising the Philippine Stock 

Index (Phisix), effectively plac-

ing the company in the roll of 

blue chip publicly listed com-

panies. This was followed by the 

inclusion of EDC in the Morgan 

Stanley Capital Index (MSCI). 

EXPANDING THE POWER 

GENERATION BUSINESS

 Today, EDC enjoys greater 

fl exibility as it pursues busi-

ness opportunities like its cur-

rent venture in the Indonesian 

EDC garnered the Bull Run Award for being the “Most Outstanding IPO” in 2006.
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geothermal market. We dispatched our business 

development team to explore the feasibility of 

participating in said country’s geothermal devel-

opment program. 

 On the home front, EDC can now participate 

in the government’s sale of geothermal power 

plants. This boosts your company’s nascent power 

generation business. In 2007, we commissioned our 

fi rst merchant power plant and fi fth production 

fi eld in Bago City, Northern Negros, followed by 

the transfer of the remaining BOT power plants in 

Leyte after completing their 10-year contracts. 

 The geothermal business in Leyte and 

Northern Negros is now vertically integrated. EDC 

practically operates the upstream and downstream 

businesses, allowing operational fl exibility from steam 

supply management to electricity demand of the newly 

acquired power plants. Admittedly, we experienced 

birth pains in Northern Negros but we are confi dent 

that we will move ahead of the learning curve and 

get back on track as we arrive at a win-win solution. 

 Meanwhile, we are making breakthroughs in 

our other project sites. The Vertical Well Discharge 

Diffuser, successfully tested in Well 403, provides us 

with a non-disruptive, environmentally  sound technology 

that could be used in exploring reserves in the buffer 

zone of the Mt. Kanlaon Park. We have prototyped 

new generation silica and calcite inhibitors Geogard 

SX and F3680 in Bacman Geothermal Production 

Field (BGPF). Steam Optimization Protocol in Leyte 

Geothermal Production Field 

(LGPF) dispatched effi cient 

generating units yielding a 12-MW 

surplus output. In Mindanao 

Geothermal Production Field 

(MGPF), we were able to 

generate extra electricity by 

exceeding the minimum energy 

off-take (MEOT) by 30 GWh 

from the 778 GWh target.

BRINGING OUT THE BEST

 EDC sustained its winning 

streak in the Anvil and Philippine 

Quill Awards. For showing exem-

plary demonstration of commu-

nication management skills and 

tools in implementing various 

public relations program, EDC 

won an award of excellence and 

six awards of merit from the In-

ternational Association of Busi-

ness Communicators (IABC), and 

another award of excellence 

and an award of merit from the 

Public Relations Society of the 

Philippines (PRSP). More than 

200 companies vied for the 

prestigious awards with only 63 

making it to the fi nal cut of 

the board of jurors. Among the 

corporate programs and proj-

ects that earned outstanding 

ratings were the IPO Launch, 

Moving on to a New Era of Pow-

er Generation Campaign, Ba-

lik-Galing Education Program, 

Schools for Excellence Project 

and the energy conservation 

infomercial campaign. 

 Maintaining highly skilled 

people remain essential to our busi-

EDC switched on its fi rst merchant power plant in 
Northern Negros on February 2, 2007.
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ness. We started implementing the 

three-year roadmap Organizational 

Transformation and the Modifi ed 

Flat Banded Organization Struc-

ture. Our biennial Managers’ Fo-

rum and Deputy Managers’ As-

sembly coupled with trainings 

and forums like the Corporate 

Governance Lecture Series have 

prepared the organization for 

the transition to becoming a 

private company.

 Due to the understandable 

anxiety of the employees re-

garding privatization, they have 

organized professional and tech-

EDC garnered seven awards in the Gold and Philippine Quill Awards and two in 
the Anvil Awards as recognition for its exemplary communication projects.

The 49-MW Northern Negros Geothermal Power Plant.
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nical unions. This came after the Supreme Court 

ruling that allows unionism for the non-rank-and-

fi le employees of EDC. From seven, the Company 

now has 12 unions. In 2007, seven active CBAs were 

renewed and two new CBAs were signed. The CBA 

of the newly organized Professional/Techni-

cal Union in LGPF has been declared dead-

lock and was assumed by the Secretary of 

Labor for compulsory arbitration. 

CONCLUDING REMARKS

 The year 2007 was our rebirth. The way I see 

it, we have witnessed the culmination of a great 

era only to commence another great era where 

EDC can still make good on its promise of delivering 

renewable energy resources. We have operational 

excellence, we have world-class manpower, we 

have a robust fi nancial health, and a clear-cut 

strategy to attain our new vision. I am proud of 

our people who made 2007 a very productive 

year. The future is teeming with prospects and 

we will maximize the growth factor. 

Paul A. Aquino

16
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Financial

   highlights
Gross Revenue
(in Billion Pesos)

18.78 

‘0
7

‘0
6

‘0
5

 25.72     

22.22

Net Income
(in Billion Pesos)

 8.65       
‘0

7

‘0
6

‘0
5

6.86     

9.17Income from
Operations
(in Billion Pesos)

9.98     

ʻ0
7

ʻ0
6

ʻ0
5

10.22    

8.21

Operating Expenses 
(in Billion Pesos)

8.80     

ʻ0
7

ʻ0
6

ʻ0
5

15.51   
14.01

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
(in Pesos) 

0.577   

20
07

20
06

20
05

0.565    

0.765
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EBITDA
(in Billion Pesos)

10.24      

‘0
7

‘0
6

‘0
5

10.34      

8.33 Total Borrowings
(in Billion Pesos)

 22.84    

‘0
7

‘0
6

‘0
5

36.48  

40.80

Recurring Net Income
(in Billion Pesos)

6.21  

ʻ0
7

ʻ0
6

ʻ0
5

5.06  

 4.56

Total Assets
(in Billion Pesos) 

 65.07   
20

07

20
06

20
05

77.39   

70.06 19
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     A NEW ERA OF 

power generation
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N e l s o n ,  a  c o n t r a c t o r  f r o m  M a n i l a  v i s i t e d  O r m o c  i n  L e y t e  i n 

1 9 7 7 .  F o r  N e l s o n ,  O r m o c  w a s  v e r y  m u c h  p r o v i n c i a l  a n d  l e s s 

p r o g r e s s i v e  u n t i l  t h e  s u c c e s s f u l  p i l o t  t e s t i n g  o f  a  3 - M W 

g e o t h e r m a l  p o w e r  p l a n t  t h a t  s u p p l i e d  e l e c t r i c i t y  2 4 / 7 

t o  O r m o c  a n d  n e a r b y  t o w n s .  S i n c e  t h e n ,  N e l s o n  t r a v e l e d 

r e g u l a r l y  t o  O r m o c  o n  b u s i n e s s  t r i p s  a t  t h e  h e i g h t  o f  t h e 

c o n s t r u c t i o n  o f  a  b i g g e r  g e o t h e r m a l  p o w e r  p l a n t  i n  To n g o n a n , 

o n e  o f  O r m o c ’s  u p l a n d  v i l l a g e s .  L a t e r,  h e  m a r r i e d  a  L e y t e ñ a 

a n d  s e t t l e d  i n  Ta c l o b a n ,  t h e  r e g i o n a l  c a p i t a l .   H i s  e l d e s t  s o n 

w a s  b o r n  i n  1 9 8 3 ,  t h e  s a m e  y e a r  t h a t  t h e  1 1 2 . 5 - M W  To n g o n a n 

P o w e r  P l a n t  w a s  c o m m i s s i o n e d .  T h e  b i r t h  o f  N e l s o n ’s  f i r s t 

s o n  a n d  t h e  s w i t c h i n g  o n  o f  To n g o n a n  1  p r e s a g e d  o f  b r i g h t 

b e g i n n i n g s .  

SENT INELS  OF  GEOTHERMAL POWER

“WE WOKE  UP ONE  DAY AND  FOUND OURSELVES  BASK ING IN 

THE  L IGHT  OF STEAM-GENERATED  ELECTR IC ITY,”  NELSON’S  IN -

LAWS  WOULD  SAY.  BEFORE  TONGONAN 1  WENT ONL INE ,  LOCAL 

ELECTR IC  COOPERAT IVE  LEYECO HAD  TO  RAT ION  ELECTR IC ITY, 

AS  ITS  D IESEL -F IRED  GENERATORS  COULD  NOT KEEP UP WITH 

THE  GROWING NEEDS  OF  ITS  POPULACE.  INDEED  A WHOLE  NEW 

L IGHT BROKE  OUT WHEN THE  NAT IONAL GOVERNMENT THROUGH 

EDC  STARTED  TAPP ING LEYTE’S  VAST STEAM RESERVES  FOR  AN 

ALTERNAT IVE  POWER SOURCE. 

O P E R A T I O N S
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 Today, EDC operates in fi ve production 

fi elds all over the archipelago, namely: Leyte 

Geothermal Production Field (LGPF), Southern 

Negros Geothermal Production Field (SNGPF), 

Bacman Geothermal Production Field (BGPF), 

Mindanao Geothermal Production Field 

(MGPF), and Northern Negros Geothermal 

Production Field (NNGPF). These production 

fi elds pioneered and perfected the wet steam 

technology and have been in commercial 

operation for 32 years now. 

 In 2007, EDC sold more than 8,000 GWh 

from steam and electricity generation, for gross 

revenues of PhP15.81 billion. Of this, 5,000 GWh 

came from electricity sales while the remaining 

3,000 GWh came from steam sales. Revenues 

from electricity amounted to PhP11.29 billion 

while steam amounted to PhP4.52 billion. 

Steam Power

 Revenues from steam were slightly high-

er in 2007 despite the slightly lower sales vol-

ume as compared to 2006 

sales volume of 3,136 GWh, 

which generated revenues 

amounting to PhP4.17 billion. 

A 42-GWh drop in surplus gen-

eration billings was offset by 

the increase in infl ation indi-

ces and recognition of the Na-

tional Power Corporation’s (NPC) 

shortfall generation billings. In-

fl ation indices increased by 

an average PhP0.0306/KWh 

while PhP321 million were 

recovered from the dis-

puted Tongonan 1 genera-

tion billing shortfall between 

1985 and 1989. 

 SNGPF generated a 

total sales volume of 1,369 

GWh, exceeding its 1,265 

GWh take-or-pay volume by 

as much as 8%, or 104 GWh. 

The 112.5-MW Palinpinon1 Power Plant in Southern Negros is one of the geothermal 
power plants being supplied by EDC’s steamfields in the Visayas. 
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Tongonan 1 and BGPF 

continue to contribute 

a t  t he  take-or-pay le-

vels of 739 GWh and 986 

GWh, respectively.

Electric Power 

 The consecutive appre-

ciation of the Philippine Peso 

against the US Dollar pulled 

down electricity prices to 

an average of PhP0.0992/

KWh. Also, the nominated 

energy for the BOT plants 

in LGPF was lowered re-

sulting to a 55-GWh drop 

in billed volume. 

 O f  t h e  5 , 0 9 9  G W h 

electricity sold, 83% or 

4,211 GWh was generated 

by LGPF. MGPF generated 

a total sales volume of 

818 GWh. NNGPF, which 

started its operation 

only in June, generated 

a total sales volume of 

70 GWh amounting to 

PhP190 million.

 In September 2007, 

Pres. Gloria Macapagal-    

Arroyo signed Executive 

Order No. 661 declaring 

geothermal reservations in 

the country as alternative 

sites for economic zones. 

Aside from developing 

and operating geothermal 

production fi elds, EDC has 

started constructing and 

operating power plants in 

2006, vertically integrat-

ing production and genera-

tion in its project sites in 

Leyte and Northern Negros. 

This setup allows for more 

effi cient management of 

steam reserves, which supply 

geothermal power plants. 

PARADIGM SWITCH: FROM 

STEAMFIELDS TO POWER 

PLANTS

 Maintaining presence 

on both sides of the pipeline 

as steamfi eld developer 

and power producer 

O P E R A T I O N S

The 104-MW Mindanao 1 and 2  power plants exceeded the target minimum 
energy off-take (MEOT) by 30 GWh from the 778 GWh set for 2007.
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brings to the fore a praxis of a new kind, 

switching the operations paradigm from 

the production fi elds to the newly acquired 

power plants. 

 The commissioning of the country’s 

fi rst merchant power plant, the 49-MW 

Northern Negros Geothermal Power Plant 

(NNGPP) on February 2, 2007 demonstrated 

EDC’s growing expertise in power plant 

operation. The Full Turnkey contract 

was awarded to Kanematsu Corporation 

while the steam gathering system or Fluid 

Collection and Recycling System (FCRS) 

was constructed by EDC. In December 2006, 

NNGPP ran a test commissioning until its 

full switch-on in February 2007.  Electricity 

is distributed through 25 kilometers 

of transmission line to the Mansilingan 

substation in Bacolod City.

 Meanwhile, the smooth operational 

turnover of almost 600 MW of BOT power 

plants in Leyte showcased EDC’s readiness 

for the power generation business. We 

have completed all our 

10-year BOT contracts with 

CalEnergy and Ormat in Leyte, 

highlighted by the handover of 

the 232-MW Malitbog and 

180-MW Mahanagdong A & B 

Power Plants in July and the 

handover of the combined 

51-MW Ormat Optimization 

Plants in September. 

 The smooth operational 

transition was the result of 

integrating the expertise of 

some 80 key personnel of 

CalEnergy and Ormat with 

the technical personnel 

and managers of EDC. 

Under  EDC’s management, 

the Upper Mahiao power 

plant operated at its full 

130-MW capacity despite 

the complexity of its binary 

design. Mahanagdong A & B 

EDC has absorbed at least 80 CalEnergy and Ormat technical personnel to maintain the 
seamless operation of the Leyte Build Operate Transfer (BOT) power plants that were 
turned over in 2007.
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operated with an availability 

factor of 99.13% and service 

factor of 99.08%.   

 The seamless turnover 

of the Leyte BOT plants 

signifi cantly reduced the 

company’s operating costs 

and expenses. From BOT fees 

alone, the company was able 

to bring down the payments 

by more than half to PhP2.10 

billion in 2007 compared to the 

PhP4.78 billion paid in 2006. 

 We still have two more 

BOT contracts with Marube-

ni for the Mindanao 1 and 

Mindanao 2 Power Plants. 

These plants will be turned 

over to the company in 

2009. By then, EDC will be 

free from BOT obligations 

and will increase its elec-

tricity generating capacity 

by 104 MW. 

BREAKING THROUGH

 EDC breaks out into the 

global mainstream by pur-

suing overseas expansion in 

geothermal-rich Indonesia. 

EDC plans to bank on its ex-

ploration, drilling and power 

plant construction expertise 

to capture a big slice of the 

estimated 20,000 MW up for 

development.  Way back in 

2002, EDC had a contract 

with Pertamina of Indone-

sia for the exploration and 

drilling of steam fi elds in 

South Sumatra, North Su-

lawesi and Lampung. Mean-

while, EDC signed another 

Third Party Drilling contract 

in Papua New Guinea.  

 In April 2007, the en-

vironmental and geoscien-

tifi c laboratories in the Fort 

Bonifacio Head Offi ce have 

Geoscientific and environmental laboratories in Fort Bonifacio and 
Leyte have completed the requirements for ISO 17025.

O P E R A T I O N S
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complied with all the requirements of the 

Philippine National Standard International 

Standardization Organization/International 

Electrotechnical Commission 17025 or ISO 

17025. Similarly, the environmental labo-

ratory in Leyte has successfully passed the 

requirements of  ISO 17025.

 On the home front, we continue to live 

up to our ‘practical solutions’ philosophy. The 

Vertical Well Discharge Diffuser has been suc-

cessfully tested in LGPF’s well 403 in October, 

paving the way for prolonged well testing in 

heavily foliaged areas. This allows for a more 

stabilized steam discharge, thus avoiding 

costly compression procedure. The diffuser 

also allows for simultaneous well testing and 

drilling avoiding added cost while maximizing 

rig utilization. 

 Our Energy Research De-

velopment Department (ERDD) 

has complied with Philippine 

National Standards for diesel 

and the Department of Ener-

gy’s standard for cocomethyl 

ester (CME). We recovered 

3.2 MWe after conducting an 

energy audit on the Malitbog 

Power Plant. ERDD has also set 

up a citronella extractor facil-

ity to be operated as liveli-

hood project for two farmers’ 

associations in Leyte.

 EDC’s position in con-

tractual and sales issues with 

the National Power Corpora-

tion   (NPC) now stands on 

favorable ground. The fi rst 

settlement in 2007 resulted 

in the compromise agree-

ment where NPC agreed to 

pay EDC PhP580 million. 

 The Geothermal Re-

sources Sales Contracts 

(GRSC) of Bacman 1 and Bac-

man 2 have been drafted and 

submitted for review to the 

Power Sector Assets and Li-

abilities Management Corpo-

ration (PSALM).  

 

Nelson has long retired from work. 

Pride comes from knowing that 

they were the fi rst benefi ciaries 

of a new and clean power source 

making them pioneers in their own 

right. Progress has spread in the 

upland communities of Ormoc and 

Kananga, the host local government 

EDC plans to buy a new drilling rig and upgrade 
three existing, as the company beefs up its inter-
national ventures particularly in the Indonesian 
geothermal market. 
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units of EDC’s geothermal power 

plants. The turbines of geothermal 

power plants have kept on lighting, 

powering, and fueling the growth of 

these communities. Next in the 

agenda is to keep harmonious 

relations with the communi-

ties and to maintain balance 

between progress and envi-

ronmental  sustainability.

The Malitbog Bottoming Cycle Plant is one of Ormat’s combined 51-MW 
optimization power plants turned over to EDC in September 2007. 

President Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo was the Guest of Honor in the Handover 
Ceremony of the 232.5-MW Malitbog Power Plant and 180-MW Mahanagdong 
Power Plant, two of the eight BOT plants that were turned over in  2007. 
(L-R: Justice Secretary Raul Gonzales, CalEnergy President Joseph Sullivan, 
EDC President and CEO Paul Aquino and Energy Secretary Raphael Lotilla)

O P E R A T I O N S
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   BREAKING NEW GROUND IN 

green growth
28
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E N V I R O N M E N T A L  M A N A G E M E N T  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  M A N A G E M E N T 

When the Philippine Environmental Impact Assessment Law (PD 1586) was en-

acted in 1978, EDC created its Environmental Management Department (EMD). 

We earned the distinction of being the fi rst company in the country to op-

erationalize an in-house environmental group. But being the fi rst meant that 

we had to help the National Government in implementing the new law in the 

four heavily forested geothermal reservations we have been tasked to man-

age. During that time, around 20 loggers were being arrested everyday. For 

our forest guards, it was an emotionally wrenching experience to throw the 

loggers and kaingineros (slash-and-burn farmers) in jail in an effort to uphold 

the law knowing that doing so would deprive families of their breadwinners. 

THE BIRTH OF A THOUSAND FORESTS STARTS WITH ONE ACORN

THE SOLUTION WAS FOUND IN SOCIAL FORESTRY PROJECTS, WHICH AT THAT 

TIME HAD NO MODELS OR PRECEDENTS WHICH EDC COULD USE AS GUIDE. 

THUS, IN 1989, THE COMPANY EMBARKED ON A PIONEERING SOCIAL FOR-

ESTRY PROJECT IN THE UPLAND VILLAGE OF BASLAY, ONE OF THE HOST COM-

MUNITIES OF SNGPF. 
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 “We asked the community members 

themselves how they thought they would 

solve their problems of lack of alternative 

livelihood and lack of food to eat. They had 

to work hard to improve their situation. 

We told them that their lives would not 

improve if they don’t get organized,” 

recalls Extension Offi cer Iko Moralde of 

his experience in implementing the social 

forestry project. 

 Then things started 

to change. From the mot-

ley crew of 33, the Baslay 

Farmers’ Association (BFA) 

grew to 179 in a village of 

500. The Baslay model was 

replicated in Leyte’s Ton-

gonan Farmers’ Association 

(TOFA), where its woman 

leader,  Romula Regala, 

was honored in 1998 as 

“Most Outstanding Filipi-

na Leader.” 

 The success of BFA and 

TOFA has been replicated 

in at least a dozen more 

communities. Today, EDC 

has already facilitated 

the establishment of 123 

community organizations 

that are not only active 

watershed stewards but 

also enterprising farmers. 

EDC is steward to over 60,000 hectares of forestlands comprising the reservations around 
its geothermal projects.

Geothermica, the endangered Philippine monkey-
eating eagle finds a new home in the Mt. Apo geo-
thermal reservation.
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In 2007, they have joined 

EDC in propagating 366,000 

seedlings in various refor-

estation projects. We have 

reforested 200 hectares and 

allocated 996 hectares more 

for seedling plantations. 

To date, we have trans-

planted 6.2 million trees 

in over 9,300 hectares 

as part of our watershed 

management program. We 

are taking care of more 

than 60,000 hectares of 

forestlands. Endangered 

and rare species have 

found sanctuaries in these 

forestlands. BGPF is home 

to the world’s largest fruit 

bat – the golden-crowned 

fl ying fox Acerodon jubatus 

and the large flying fox 

Pteropus vampyrus. MGPF 

is the new home of the 

Philippine monkey-eating 

eagle named Geothermica. 

BUTTRESSING OUR 

GREEN DEFENSES 

 We have expanded our 

carbon sink in MGPF by al-

lotting 35 hectares for the 

Government’s Green Philip-

pines Program, as our way of 

easing global warming in this 

part of the globe. The forests 

within our geothermal res-

ervations absorb carbon di-

oxide from the atmosphere. 

The Department of Environ-

ment and Natural Resources 

(DENR) launched the Tree-

for-Life project in the Mt. 

Apo geothermal reservation 

where around 2.54 hectares 

were planted to indigenous 

tree species. LGPF has been 

cited twice in a row as “En-

vironmental Partner” by   the 

Environmental Management 

Bureau of DENR for practicing 

holistic environmental man-

agement programs.

The World Bank through the Netherlands Clean Development Mecha-
nism Facility has awarded EDC its second Emissions Reduction Purchase 
contract for the 49-MW Northern Negros Geothermal Project.

E N V I R O N M E N T A L  M A N A G E M E N T  
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 We have secured the Environmental 

Compliance Certifi cates (ECCs) for the new 

exploration project in Dauin, Negros Oriental 

and for Mindanao 3 in North Cotabato.  For NNGP, 

an   endorsement from the Mt. Kanlaon Protected 

Area Management Board (PAMB) has been 

obtained in time for the company’s entry to the 

Mt. Kanlaon Buffer Zone. An independent body 

conducted a comprehensive biodiversity 

study of the Mt. Kanlaon Natural Park and 

their findings form part of the documents 

that were submitted to PAMB. 

 World Bank awarded Clean Development 

Mechanism (CDM) contracts to EDC’s Northern 

Negros and Nasulo Geothermal Projects. The 

company is now signatory to two Emission 

Reductions Purchase Agreements (ERPA) 

through the Netherlands Clean Development 

Mechanism Facility (NCDMF).  This will reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions by displacing the 

equivalent generation of a diesel-fi red power 

plant. The ERPA has a contract value of about 

EURO 7.2 million for the guaranteed purchase 

of at least 929,000 tons of 

carbon dioxide from NNGP 

between 2007 and 2012. 

BRANCHING OUT

 We are making strides as 

a member of the League of 

Corporate Foundations (LCF) 

and the Renewable Energy 

(RE) Coalition, both of which 

regard EDC’s environmental 

practice as among the best in 

the country.

 In July 2007, EDC made 

its debut in the CSR Expo 

by showcasing successful 

environmental practices in 

various exhibits and forums. 

President and CEO Paul A. 

Aquino delivered a presenta-

tion on EDC’s experience in 

“CSR and the Environment”, 

while SVP Agnes C. de Jesus 

shared the company’s com-

pelling experience on “Social 

Processes for Environmen-

tal Sustainability”.  A fi tting 

follow-up to our successful 

participation in the CSR Expo 

was the election of Senior 

Vice President Agnes de Jesus 

as Chair of the LCF Environ-

ment Committee.  

 As an active member 

of the RE Coalition, which 

is composed of energy com-

panies, NGOs, academic in-

stitutions and 385,000 in-

dividuals, we have been 

pushing for the passage of 
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the Renewable Energy (RE) 

Bill.  Aside from minimizing 

greenhouse gases, the bill 

will also save our economy 

some PhP67 billion in terms 

of foregone oil imports and 

avoided health costs. We are 

initiating moves for the clas-

sifi cation of geothermal as a 

renewable energy source and 

its inclusion in the RE Bill.  In-

clusion will give fi scal incen-

tives for the company. 

 

Romula Regala is still active in 

TOFA. It was under her term as 

President when the 25-year land 

tenure contract was awarded 

covering 1,000 hectares under 

the Community Forest Steward-

ship program of the Govern-

ment. Now, TOFA oversees the 

second biggest rattan plantation 

of its kind in the country. Aside 

from rattan, TOFA developed 

fi ve hectares of black pepper, 

fi ve hectares of fruit orchard, 

45 hectares of abaca (Manila 

hemp) and 200 hectares of Aca-

cia mangium. Its savings and 

time-deposit accounts opened 

in 1992 yielded a 368% ROI. 

Elsewhere, the 123 community 

organizations generated a com-

bined capital build-up (CBU) 

of PhP15 million. Indeed, one 

acorn went a long way to grow-

ing a canopy of self-sustaining 

communities. 

E N V I R O N M E N T A L  M A N A G E M E N T  
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    SETTING THE WHEELS OF   

prosperity in motion

34
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What started as a germane project in social forestry has 

evolved into a community relations initiative that later 

on became a corporate social responsibility program. 

Charity in EDC’s case did not mean dole-out from the 

start. The farmers’ associations organized earlier to help 

in the protection and preservation of watersheds are 

now community entrepreneurs that sustain the barangay 

economy. Our work with the farmers’ association is only a 

part of a bigger goal we hope to achieve – that of creating 

the cycle of wealth and welfare in our areas of operation. 

PRELUDE TO COMMUNITY WEALTH 

HOUSEHOLD SURVEYS CONDUCTED IN OUR 43 PRIMARY 

PARTNER COMMUNITIES IN 2006 REVEALED THAT ABOUT 

74% OF THE TOTAL HOUSEHOLD STILL LIVE BELOW THE 

POVERTY THRESHOLD LEVEL OR BPTL. IN 2007, WE 

COMPLETED THE IMPACT ANALYSIS AND FEASIBILITY STUDY 

FOR LIVELIHOOD PROJECTS AND DREW THE ROADMAP TO 

SUSTAINABLE LIVELIHOOD WITH THE GOAL OF HELPING 

12,000 HOUSEHOLDS TO ACHIEVE DOUBLE THE POVERTY 

THRESHOLD LEVEL INCOME BY 2010. OUR COMMUNITY 

PARTNERSHIPS DEPARTMENT HAS DETERMINED THE BEST 

MIX OF INCOME-GENERATING ACTIVITIES CUSTOMIZED FOR 

IDENTIFIED HOUSEHOLDS.  

C O R P O R A T E  S O C I A L  R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y 
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 We are cultivating entrepreneur-

ial energies by developing integrated 

commercially viable livelihood projects 

in coordination with the Department of 

Agriculture, Department of Trade and 

Industry, the local government units, 

and the local cooperatives. In 2007, we 

have conducted 70 social development 

training programs and helped commu-

nities put up abaca, banana, coffee, 

vegetable plantations, rice paddies, 

goat dairy farms, aquaculture farms, 

and a citronella oil extracting plant.  

NURTURING THE FIRST SAPLING 

 It is in education that the tru-

est sense of the cycle of wealth can 

be created. In 2005, EDC launched its 

newest education project “Schools for 

Excellence” in two elementary schools 

in two upland communities in Ormoc 

and Kananga in Leyte. 

Dubbed Leyte Schools 

for Excellence (SFE), 

the project is being 

implemented under the 

Department of Educa-

tion’s Adopt-A-School 

Program. We made in-

novations by making the 

project a multi-sectoral 

initiative involving the 

local government units, 

the local school board, 

the DepEd Leyte Schools 

Division, and the Par-

ent-Teacher-Community 

Associations.

 Already on its third 

year of implementation, 

SFE has made signifi -

cant changes in the per-

formance of students. 

Aside from providing 

school buildings and fa-

cilities comparable to 

that of private schools, 

the curriculum has been 

strengthened to provide 

modules that would en-

hance the students’ ac-

ademic aptitude. 

 In 2007, SFE sus-

tained its zero non-

reader performance 

across all grade levels. 

Enrolment rose an aver-

age 64% from 450 in SY 

2004-2005 to 686 in SY 
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2007-2008. From as high 

as 8.5% in 2004, drop-

out rate declined to as 

low as 0.7% in 2007, re-

sulting to survival rate 

of 91%. Attendance and 

retention rates have 

been increasing at an 

average 6% and 11%, 

respectively. From only 

35% in 2004, SFE has 

achieved 85% survival 

rate in the Kananga 

school. SFE-Kananga is 

a National Achievement 

Test (NAT) performer af-

ter it achieved 30% im-

provement in 2007. It 

also ranked no.1 in the 

NAT District Level in the 

same year. 

ENRICHING THE 

BREEDING GROUND

 Hinged on the con-

cept of a well-rounded 

person, the Energy Camp  

has been providing an 

alternative learning ex-

perience for our high 

school scholars. Pat-

terned after summer 

Energy Camp provides experiential learning and fun-filled curriculum 
for incoming 4th year high school students in EDC’s host provinces.

C O R P O R A T E  S O C I A L  R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y 
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camps abroad, Energy Camp seeks to 

inculcate in the youth social awareness 

and environmental responsibility while 

performing a weeklong curriculum de-

signed to develop their social, entre-

preneurial, and leadership skills. Last 

summer, a total of 288 incoming 4th 

year high school students from Sorso-

gon, Leyte, Negros Oriental and North 

Cotabato joined the Energy Camp held 

in our four project sites.

 Aside from sports, the campers 

were also taught basic martial arts and 

outdoor survival skills like map read-

ing, fi rst aid, and rappelling – skills 

they have to apply on their fi nal day 

at the camp as they hurdle a series of 

physical and mental challenges team-

on-team a la “Amazing Race.” The En-

ergy Camp received the Anvil and Gold 

Quill awards. 

SHARING THE BENEFITS OF PROGRESS

 For the residents of Barangay Lib-

ertad in Arakan, North Cotabato, life 

has been a humdrum 

and predictable rou-

tine.  They would wake 

up in the wee hours of 

the morning, till their 

lands, and then sleep at 

the unusually early time 

of 6:00 p.m.  Informa-

tion and entertainment 

were derived solely from 

battery-operated tran-

sistor radios.  As typical 

in other rural areas, the 

village fi esta is the only 

event that puts color to 

their community.  

 The residents have 

long been requesting 

for their remote baran-

gay to be connected to 

the main power grid.  

Their wish was fi nally 

granted in 2007 when 

it was included in the 

23 barangays and 60 si-

The Leyte Schools for Excellence is a seven-year pilot project under EDC’s community 
partnerships program designed to provide quality education in the upland community.
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tios that benefi ted from 

EDC’s rural electrifi ca-

tion program.  The com-

pany energized 29 sitios 

in Leyte, 11 barangays 

in Northern Samar, two 

barangays and one si-

tio in Eastern Samar, 

fi ve barangays in Negros 

Oriental, 11 sitios in 

Negros Occidental, fi ve 

barangays and one sitio 

in Cotabato, 11 sitios in 

Albay, and seven sitios 

in Sorsogon.  

 Our host communities 

continue to benefi t from 

the presence of steam-

fi elds and power plants 

through the remittance of 

royalty payments, which 

are being used to subsi-

dize power rates and fi -

nance development proj-

ects in their respective 

areas.  In 2007, our roy-

alty payments amounted 

to PhP1.4 billion with 

PhP410 million going to 

the host Local Govern-

ment Units and PhP830 

million going to the De-

partment of Energy. 

 Our series of focused 

medical, dental, and op-

tical outreach programs 

benefi ted more than 

10,000 patients. About 

47 community health 

centers have refurbished 

their facilities and sought 

to reach more population 

by training more than 

300 health workers. 

 Patterned after EDC’s 

search and rescue teams, 

Patterned after EDC’s Emergency Response Units, host barangays have 
formed their own Barangay Emergency Response Teams (BERT) after 
undergoing training in disaster management and rescue operations.

C O R P O R A T E  S O C I A L  R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y 
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ten communities have organized their own Ba-

rangay Emergency Response Team or BERT. Its 

143 members went on disaster preparedness 

and search and rescue trainings. BERTs are 

now trained to conduct disaster relief and 

rescue operations and will be the commu-

nity’s fi rst source of aid in times of natural 

calamities. 

 Meanwhile, EDC joined the Energy Fam-

ily in building the second Energy Village in 

Brgy. Manumbalay, Manito, Albay to serve 

as relocation site for the victims of super 

typhoon Reming. EDC facilitated the sourc-

ing of funds while Gawad Kalinga built the 

houses under a contract with Petron Corp. 

 EDC is determined to make inroads by 

investing in social equity projects. And with 

the institutionalization of the corporate social 

responsibility policy, we are optimistic that the 

roadmap to creating the cycle of wealth and welfare 

in host communities will be achieved. We are making 

anchor where we can create the biggest difference 

- in the minds and hearts of the community’s future 

leaders.

An offshoot of the Energy Village Project for the Guinsaugon landslide victims, EDC joins 
the Energy Family again in Energy Village 2, this time to put up the relocation site for 
the victims of super typhoon Reming in Manito, Albay. 
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    BRINGING OUT THE BEST IN   
  our people
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Dickson Guardiario is the second generation of EDC’s breed of new 

heroes. Like his father who worked in the Energy Drilling Division 

of the PNOC Energy Companies, he knew what kind of profession he 

would take and where he wanted to work. “It was my great desire 

and ambition to work in a prestigious company like EDC, which plays 

a vital role in the country’s energy development and is a company 

that cares for its employees,” he says.  He attained his ambition and 

became an EDC employee and worked as a toolpusher in EDC’s drill-

ing project in Lihir, Papua New Guinea. 

H U M A N  R E S O U R C E S  D E V E L O P M E N T

ON THE ROAD TO ORGANIZATIONAL TRANSFORMATION

FOR 32 YEARS NOW, EDC HAS BEEN NURTURING CREATIVITY AND 

MOTIVATION AMONG ITS WORKFORCE. WE VALUE OUR EMPLOYEES AS THEY 

BECOME THE NEW “HARD” SIDE OF OUR BUSINESS IN THE ERA OF KNOWLEDGE 

ECONOMY. EDC EMPLOYS ABOUT 2,600 PEOPLE DEPLOYED IN SIX OFFICES 

NATIONWIDE. AT LEAST 1,300 ARE IN THE MANAGERIAL, PROFESSIONAL AND 

TECHNICAL POSITIONS WHILE THERE ARE MORE THAN 1,200 IN THE RANK-

AND FILE POSITIONS. SIXTY-SEVEN PERCENT OF OUR EMPLOYEES HAVE BEEN 

WORKING WITH THE COMPANY FOR AT LEAST 10 YEARS. 
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 Maintaining highly skilled people remain 

essential to any business. We retooled exist-

ing skills with the objective of shifting organi-

zational culture from a government corpora-

tion to a private enterprise mindset. 

 Admittedly, we sustained workforce 

losses due to the limitations of being a for-

merly state-owned corporation. After Admin-

istrative Order 103 and Executive Order 366 

were promulgated in 2004, we lost 73% of our 

drilling manpower to foreign labor markets. 

In response, we implemented measures to ar-

rest the drain, beginning with fl attening the 

corporate structure through the Modifi ed Flat 

Banded Organization (MFBO). 

 An enterprise-wide survey was conducted 

to take the workforce pulse and assess the 

prevailing psyche in relation to the changes 

happening to the company. The survey of a 

random sampling of 10% of the population 

showed that there is a remarkably high per-

ception among employees that EDC is still the 

leader in the industry while most employees 

based in project sites feel that their skills are 

highly utilized. The survey also showed that 

there is a need to enhance 

technology that support 

core processes, modeling 

of corporate values, and 

raising employee awareness 

on new business directions. 

RAISING THE BAR OF 

PERFORMANCE ONE 

NOTCH HIGHER

 Promoting organization-

al excellence by performing 

tasks one notch higher has 

been our mantra since the 

transformation began. We 

conducted our 2007 Manag-

ers’ Forum in Bacolod City 

to coincide with the com-

missioning of the 49-MW 

Northern Negros Geother-

mal Power Plant. The theme 

“Changing the Corporate 

Culture of PNOC EDC” aptly 

discussed the rapid changes 

in the business and how the 
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organizational culture could 

adapt to the change. 

 In preparing the man-

agement for the transition, 

a series of Corporate Gov-

ernance Lectures were con-

ducted focusing on topics 

like how to enhance company 

value and national develop-

ment through privatization, 

how to model the experience 

of other companies that have 

successfully embraced cor-

porate governance in their 

business, and how to apply 

the standards prescribed by 

regulatory bodies and corpo-

rate governance institutions.   

 

STABILITY, SAFETY AND 

SERVICE AMID CHANGE 

 Labor relations in 2007 

remained amicable despite 

the understandable anxiety 

experienced by the employ-

ees at the onset of privati-

zation. From four unions in 

1988, we now have eight le-

gitimate rank-and-fi le unions 

and four supervisory/profes-

sional/technical unions. In 

2007, we renewed seven active 

Collective Bargaining Agree-

ments (CBAs) and signed two 

new ones.  These CBAs have 

an economic package value 

of at least PhP260 million 

including signing bonuses. 

 The CBA of the Leyte-

based PT Union PELT ATSAPE 

has been declared deadlock. 

The Secretary of the Depart-

ment of Labor and Employ-

ment (DOLE) assumed the 

dispute and is now undergo-

ing compulsory arbitration. 

 More than 800 employ-

ees or 24,130 man-hours of 

volunteer service have been 

generated by the company’s 

various CSR projects. Our 

employees joined in volun-

In 2007, EDC renewed seven existing Collective Bargaining Agreements  
(CBA) and signed two new ones, with an estimated economic package 
value of at least Php260 million.

H U M A N  R E S O U R C E S  D E V E L O P M E N T
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teer programs by serving as resource persons 

in education projects, counselors in youth 

projects, accountants in livelihood work-

shops, facilitators in the Energy Camp, 

blood donors in blood letting programs, or 

by simply lending a helping hand in times of 

natural calamities. 

 Our Site Emergency Response Teams are 

now fully functional in all the five proj-

ect sites plus the newly organized Fort 

Bonifacio Team. We are keenly focused on 

delivering excellent service with the sort 

of commitment and discipline that has 

achieved 4,536,558 safe man-hours with-

out lost time accident (LTA). Two of our 

project sites, BGPF and NNGPF, received 

certificates of recognition from the De-

partment of Energy and the Safety and 

Health Association of the Philippine Ener-

gy Sector (SHAPES) for achieving 1,805,928 

and 1,862,026 LTA, respectively.

Ramon Diaz de Rivera, Steam and 

Power Sales Manager, is proud of 

his 25 years in EDC.  “Though a fully 

owned and controlled corporation 

of government, our company was 

designed from its very inception to 

function primarily as a commercial 

enterprise, and operate on this 

basis. Like any other commercial 

enterprise, it has to prove its 

worth in the market place. As an 

international acknowledgement of 

its fi nancial viability, EDC has been 

able to obtain and maintain credit 

accommodations from the banking 

community. The successful IPO of the 

company also speaks highly of the 

professionalism and skill with which 

EDC has been managed over the 

years.” However, he believes that 

there should also be changes not only 

in technology, skills and procedure 

but most importantly, in employee 

behavior under the private set-up. 

All project sites including the Fort Bonifacio head office now have Emergency Response 
Teams. The teams are also regular volunteers in the Energy Camp.
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FROM COMPLIANCE TO

   performance

Even  a s  a  government  corporat ion ,  EDC  has  a l ready 

subsc r ibed  to  the  cu l ture  o f  i n i t i a t i ve ,  p ro fe s s ion -

a l i sm and  exce l lence .  We  conduct  our  bus ines s  w i th 

emphas i s  on  i n tegr i t y,  re spons ib i l i t y  and  t ranspar-

ency  to  s takeho lder s .  When  we  took  the  b i g  leap 

in 2007, we were better prepared and we had a seam-

less adoption of the corporate governance practices of 

the private sector. But we believe that even the best 

corporations should not remain complacent and must 

continuously improve themselves.
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C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E

49

EDC CODE OF CONDUCT AND BUSINESS ETHICS

EDC ADHERES TO A SET OF PRINCIPLES EXPRESSLY WRITTEN IN THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

AND BUSINESS ETHICS WHERE THE CODE OF CONDUCT COVERS THE ETHICAL BEHAVIOR 

OF OUR EMPLOYEES WHILE THE CODE FOR BUSINESS ETHICS COVERS THE STANDARD OF 

CONDUCT OF OUR COMPANY TOWARDS ITS STAKEHOLDERS. MORE THAN JUST A SET OF 

WORDS, THE CODE EMBODIES THE VALUES, ASPIRATIONS, AND EXPECTATIONS OF THE 

COMPANY FROM ITS EMPLOYEES.  EVERY EDC EMPLOYEE HAS TO COMMIT TO A COMMON 

SET OF BELIEFS ABOUT HOW ONE SHOULD DEAL WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS.  
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EDC MANUAL ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 In fortifying EDC’s commitment to 

transparency and accountability, the 

Board of Directors unanimously approved 

on November 15, 2007 the Manual on 

Corporate Governance, setting out to 

institutionalize the standards of good 

governance. It integrates the best 

corporate governance practices in the 

country especially those of the publicly-

listed companies (PLC) like the adoption 

of the provision for additional protection 

of minority shareholders and election of 

independent directors. 

 The reporting line of the Compliance 

Offi ce and the Internal Audit Department 

has been transferred from the Offi ce of the 

President to the Board of Directors through 

the Audit and Governance Committee. On 

November 29, 2007, incumbent Directors 

were required to undergo a corporate 

governance orientation/training by an 

accredited training institution. Also, EDC 

obtained the services of SGV & Co. as its 

external auditor. 

STRUCTURE AND COMPOSITION OF 

THE BOARD

 The Company’s Articles of 

Incorporation and By-Laws prescribe 

that the Board shall be composed of 11 

directors, three of whom are independent 

directors who are to be certifi ed as 

possessing all the qualifi cations and none 

of the disqualifi cations provided under 

the Securities Regulation Code and its 

IRR, as well as the Company’s Corporate 

Governance Manual. 

 Having been pre-screened and 

elected during the Stockholders’ Meeting 

last June 13, 2007, the 

independent Directors 

have a fi xed term of one 

year or until such time 

that their successors 

have been duly qualifi ed 

and elected. 

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit and Governance 

Committee 

 Tasked with the pri-

mary function of oversight 

and monitoring of audit 

and governance activities 

of the company, the Audit 

and Governance Commit-

tee (AGC) is specifi cally 

bound by its duty to re-

view all of the Company’s 

fi nancial statements, per-

form oversight function in 

the management of the 

Company’s internal con-

trols, review Internal Au-

dit Department’s plans, 

activities, organizational 

structure and effective-

ness in complying with the 

International Standards 

for the Professional Prac-

tice of Internal Auditing; 

and to ensure there is no 

unjustifi ed restrictions, or 

limitations, on the reviews 

conducted by Internal Au-

dit Department. 

 The AGC also performs 

functions on the compli-

ance to all rules, laws, 
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and policies including the 

company’s adherence to 

established principles and 

best practices on corpo-

rate governance.

 Signifi cant for 2007 was  

AGC’s thorough review of 

the quarterly and annual 

financial statements of 

EDC as well as the suc-

cessful evaluation and 

selection of a reputable 

private auditing firm as 

its external auditor. 

 Membership in the AGC 

is composed of at least a 

majority of Independent 

Directors, one of whom 

shall be the Committee 

Chairman. At present, the 

committee is composed 

of all three independent 

directors of the Company 

and two regular directors.

Nominations and 

Compensation Committee 

 The two-fold function 

of the Nominations and 

Compensation Committee 

(NCC) covers the follow-

ing: On Nominations, pre-

screen the qualifi cations 

and prepare the fi nal list 

of all candidates and put 

in place screening policies 

and parameters to enable 

it to effectively review 

the qualifi cations of the 

nominees for directors, 

as well as to consider and 

recommend to the Board 

the temporary disqualifi ca-

tion of a Director; and on 

Compensation, establish 

a formal and transparent 

procedure for developing 

a policy on executive re-

muneration and for fi xing  

the remuneration pack-

ages of corporate offi cers 

and directors;  provide 

oversight over remunera-

tion of senior management 

and other key personnel, 

ensuring that compensa-

tion is consistent with the 

Company’s culture, strat-

egy objectives, plans and 

programs as well as the 

power and energy industry. 

 Notable among its ac-

complishments in the pre-

vious year are the follow-

ing: (1) the pre-screening 

of eligible candidates for 

the 11 Directors’ seats in 

the EDC Board for the 2007 

Annual Stockholders’ Meet-

ing, the pre-screening of 

the seven new Directors 

elected during the No-

vember 29, 2007 Board 

Meeting, and the pre-

screening of a new Inde-

penden t  D i r e c t o r   M r.  

Edgardo Bautista who re-

signed in October 2007; 

and (2) the review and 

recommendation of a 

C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E
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more competitive Directors’ compensation package, 

which was approved by the Company’s Stockholders. 

 The Committee shall be composed of three Directors, 

one of whom must be an independent director who shall 

be the committee chairman. 

Risk Management Committee 

 The Risk Management Committee (RMC) is responsible 

for assisting the Board in its oversight responsibility over 

Management’s activities in managing physical, fi nancial, 

operational and other risks of the corporation. In 2007, 

the RMC has institutionalized a system of Enterprise-

Wide Risk Management which enables the Company to 

effectively identify and manage risks.

 The RMC shall have at least three Directors as 

its members.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 In addition to the three main Board Committees, the 

EDC Board in its August 21, 2007 meeting, approved the 

creation of a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

(CSRC) which shall be primarily tasked to formulate and 

update the vision, strategy and execution of CSR programs 

for the Company, as well as oversee, coordinate and 

integrate their management for effective development 

and implementation.

 The CSRC shall have at least three Directors as 

members, one of whom shall be elected as Chairman.

 

Operations Committee

 The most recent creation of the Board, the Operations 

Committee (OpsComm) was constituted to take over the 

functions of the former Procurement Committee, as 

well as to provide guidance on and close monitoring of 

the Company’s operations and other company interests 

requiring approval of the Board, such as expenditures 

from 10 to 100 million pesos, among others. 

 Its membership consists of seven Directors.
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 MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit and Governance

V.S. PEREZ, Chairman

P.D. GARRUCHO, JR., Member

F.G.B. PUNO, Member

F.G. ESTRADA, Member

E.O. RECTO, Member

Nominations and Compensation

F.G. ESTRADA, Chairman
F.R. LOPEZ, Member
R.B. TANTOCO, Member

Risk Management

E.O. RECTO, Chairman
J.C. RUSSELL, Member
R.B. TANTOCO, Member

Corporate Social Responsibility

F.R. LOPEZ, Chairman
E.B. PANTANGCO, Member

Operations

P.A. AQUINO, Member
R.B. TANTOCO, Member
P.D. GARRUCHO, JR., Member
F.R. LOPEZ, Member
F.G.B. PUNO, Member
E.B. PANTANGCO, Member
J.C. RUSSELL, Member
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For 2007, the Board of Directors held a 

total of 23 meetings. We have an excellent 

record of attendance of the individual 

directors as shown below:

 

NAME OF DIRECTOR               ATTENDANCE

Amatong, Ernesto S. 78%

Aquino, Paul A.  83%

Aquino, Pedro, Jr. A. 75%

Bautista, Edgardo A. 89%

Bengzon, Benito Jose Q. 86%

Cailao, Antonio M. 100%

Espina, Asuncion J. 91%

Garrucho, Peter, Jr. D. 100%

Lopez, Feredico R. 50% 1

Lopez, Oscar M. 100%

Mariano, Danilo Luis M. 100%

Pantangco, Ernesto B. 100%

Perez, Vicente, Jr. S. 67%

Puno, Francis Giles B. 50%1

Recto, Eric O. 100%

Rodriguez, Nicasio, Jr. P. 100%

Russel, Jonathan C. 100%

Salazar, Ralph A. 100%

Tantoco, Richard B. 100%

Tugonon, Benjamin F. 64%

 1 Elected only last November 29, 2007. Attended 1 of 2 

board meetings for the remainder of the year 2007.

The incumbency of the foregoing directors 

The Incumbency of the following directors 

in 2007 is as follows:

January 2007-Present

Aquino, Paul A.

January-June 2007

The incumbency of the 

directors in 2007 is as 

follows:

January 2007-Present

Aquino, Paul A.

January-June 2007

Amatong, Ernesto S.

January-August 2007

Cailao, Antonio M.

January-November 2007

Bengzon, Benito Jose Q.

Espina, Asuncion J.

Mariano, Danilo Luis M.

Rodriguez, Nicasio, Jr. P.

Salazar, Ralph A.

Tugonon, Benjamin F.

June 2007-Present

Perez, Vicente, Jr. S.

Recto, Eric O.

June-November 2007

Bautista, Edgardo A.

August-November 2007

Aquino, Pedro A. 

November 2007-Present

Lopez, Oscar M.

Lopez, Federico R.

Garrucho, Peter, Jr. D.

Tantoco, Richard B.

Puno, Francis Giles B.

Pantangco, Ernesto B.

Russell, Jonathan C. 
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EVALUATION SYSTEM AND SELF-RATING SCORECARD

 In compliance with the provisions of the Company’s 

Manual on Corporate Governance, it has adopted the 

self-rating scorecard to initially assess EDC’s level 

of compliance to corporate governance standards. 

The extent of the evaluation made in 2007 was EDC’s 

participation in the 2007 CG Scorecard Project of the 

Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD), Securities and 

Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Philippine Stock 

Exchange (PSE). 

 EDC has a corporate governance evaluation system 

which will aid in the review of and ensure compliance with 

the corporate governance policies as well as to identify 

potential improvements. The evaluation system also 

encourages disclosure of deviations from the company’s 

corporate governance policies, if any, and is discussed 

during the AGC and Board Meetings. 

LEADING IN THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD

 In a project jointly undertaken by the ICD, SEC and 

PSE, EDC has been rated as one of the 20 top-ranked 

Philippine companies on corporate governance for the 

year 2007. 

 Despite being a newly publicly-listed company, EDC 

scored a total of 84% in the corporate governance scorecard 

with 98% rating on “Disclosure and Transparency” and 

92% on “Equitable Treatment of Shareholders”, among 

others. EDC achieved a higher rating compared to 

other PLCs in the Electricity, Energy, Power and Water 

Industry (76%) and all the other 138 PLCs (65%) that were 

rated. Our Board of Directors has committed to work 

on strengthening corporate governance. Our qualifying 

in ICD’s vanguard group Companies’ Circle will be our 

leverage in raising the bar of our corporate governance 

performance notches higher in 2008. There are only 13 

scorecard points that need to be complied and they shall 

be accomplished within the 3rd quarter. We shall work 

closely with ICD so we can improve on our deliverables to 

our shareholders. 

C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E
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PNOC ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION    



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
PNOC Energy Development Corporation

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of PNOC Energy Development Corporation (a subsidiary 
of Red Vulcan Holdings Corporation), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, and the 
statement of income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash fl ows for the year then ended, 
and a summary of signifi cant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The fi nancial statements of 
the Company as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were audited by another auditor 
whose report dated March 27, 2007, expressed an unqualifi ed opinion on those statements.  Those fi nancial 
statements, however, do not include the restatement adjustments as discussed in Note 44.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fi nancial statements in 
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.  This responsibility includes: designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fi nancial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate 
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the fi nancial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fi nancial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the fi nancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the fi nancial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the 2007 fi nancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
fi nancial position of PNOC Energy Development Corporation as of December 31, 2007, and its fi nancial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards.

We also audited the adjustments described in Note 44 to the fi nancial statements that were applied to restate 
the 2006 and 2005 fi nancial statements. In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been 
properly applied.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ladislao Z. Avila, Jr.
Partner
CPA Certifi cate No. 69099
SEC Accreditation No. 0111-AR-1
Tax Identifi cation No. 109-247-891
PTR No. 0017573, January 3, 2008, Makati City

January 22, 2008
 

Ladislao Z. Avila, Jr.
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DECEMBER 31,  2007
(With  Comparat ive  F igures  for  2006)

 2007 2006
  (Restated)
ASSETS
  
Current Assets  
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) P2,797,581,577 P9,999,202,227
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) 4,925,681,584 4,355,257,059
Concession receivable (Note 34) 2,199,986,327 2,070,920,965
Available-for-sale (AFS) investments (Note 10) 1,177,589,987 1,341,751,679
Parts and supplies inventories (Note 8) 1,140,044,062 1,164,452,145
Due from affi liated companies – 4,785,103
Derivative assets – 344,000,987
Other current assets (Note 9) 535,582,774 917,776,810
 12,776,466,311 20,198,146,975
Noncurrent assets held for sale (Note 11) 1,672,516,100 –
Total Current Assets 14,448,982,411 20,198,146,975

Noncurrent Assets  
Concession receivable - net of current portion (Note 34) 34,695,434,198 36,895,420,525
Intangible asset (Note 13) 8,738,836,827 8,794,316,944
Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 30) 3,052,792,587 4,919,954,067
Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 14) 1,171,922,174 1,614,922,295
Property and equipment (Note 12) 1,111,020,356 2,469,219,679
Investment property (Note 15) 5,121,709 278,921,181
Other noncurrent assets (Note 16) 1,846,624,604 2,221,561,116
Total Noncurrent Assets  50,621,752,455 57,194,315,807
   
TOTAL ASSETS  P65,070,734,866 P77,392,462,782 
    
LIABILITIES AND  EQUITY    
  
LIABILITIES    
  
Current Liabilities   
Trade and other payables (Note 17) P3,637,782,267 P6,429,065,264
Income tax payable 418,986,388 507,932,215
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 20) 2,031,565,879 3,171,351,515
Current portion of obligations to power plant 
contractors (Note 19) 246,719,220 2,766,401,494
Current portion of royalty fee payable (Note 18) 456,273,707 524,644,631
Due to Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC) – 350,844,177
Total Current Liabil it ies  6,791,327,461 13,750,239,296

Noncurrent Liabilities  
Long-term debt -  net of current portion (Note 20) 20,809,947,547 33,308,649,468
Royalty fee payable - net of current portion (Note 18) 1,277,653,457 1,419,678,292
Obligations to power plant contractors - net of current 
portion (Note 19) 96,287,392 413,180,565
Retirement and other post-retirement benefi t plans (Note 39) 912,069,757 869,569,338
Other long-term liabilities (Note 21) 330,168,646 256,432,845
Total Noncurrent Liabil it ies 23,426,126,799 36,267,510,508

EQUITY   
Common stock (Note 22) 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
Preferred stock (Note 22) 75,000,000 –
Additional paid-in capital (Note 22) 6,278,075,648 6,278,075,648
Accumulated unrealized gain on AFS investments (Note 10) 368,549,253  131,462,811
Retained earnings (Note 23) 13,131,655,705 5,965,174,519
Total Equity  34,853,280,606 27,374,712,978
  
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  P65,070,734,866 P77,392,462,782
   

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

B A L A N C E  S H E E T
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S T A T E M E N T  O F  I N C O M E
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2007
(With Comparative Figures for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005)

 Years Ended December 31
 2007 2006 2005
   (Restated) (Restated)
REVENUES   
Revenue from sale of electricity P11,291,898,705 P12,329,293,369  P13,221,450,697
Revenue from sale of steam 4,521,232,474 4,173,352,911  4,184,165,193
Interest income on service concession 2,236,906,585 2,357,591,482 2,470,503,366
Revenue from drilling services 624,777,831 261,449,987  149,524,840
Construction revenue 108,813,951 6,599,983,742  2,194,333,202
 18,783,629,546 25,721,671,491 22,219,977,298
OPERATING EXPENSES   
Purchased services and utilities (Note 24) (3,037,996,158) (5,097,022,773) (6,729,759,120)
Construction costs (101,137,594) (6,021,156,889) (2,042,725,148)
Depreciation and amortization (220,109,054) (97,686,449) (82,724,315)
Operations and maintenance (Note 25) (3,069,862,420) (3,241,956,710) (3,290,215,921)
General and administrative (Note 26) (2,375,691,381) (1,047,347,557) (1,861,315,361)
 (8,804,796,607) (15,505,170,378) (14,006,739,865)
FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES)   
Interest income - net of fi nal tax 648,736,545 330,161,680 446,165,085
Interest expense (Note 27) (1,567,038,735) (2,330,786,357) (2,604,375,818)
 (918,302,190) (2,000,624,677) (2,158,210,733)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)   
Foreign exchange gains - net (Note 28) 3,900,346,224 2,041,014,023  6,442,750,524
Derivatives gain (loss) 56,011,571 (145,851,332) 200,262,741
Miscellaneous - net (Note 29) (204,412,937) (22,068,021) (97,370,469)
 3,751,944,858 1,873,094,670 6,545,642,796
   
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 12,812,475,607 10,088,971,106 12,600,669,496
   
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 30) (4,160,994,421) (3,225,629,880) (3,426,506,227)
   
NET INCOME P8,651,481,186 P6,863,341,226 P9,174,163,269
      
Basic/diluted earnings per share (Note 31) P0.577 P0.565 P0.765

      
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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S T A T E M E N T  O F  C H A N G E S  I N  E Q U I T Y
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2007
(With Comparative Figures for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005)
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Balance, January 1, 2005, as previously  
        reported 

P=10,000,000,000 
P=–

P=– 
P=– 

P=– 
(P=8,262,782,320) 

P=1,737,217,680 
Im

pact of early adoption of IFR
IC

 12 (N
ote 3) 

– 
–

– 
– 

– 
908,737,729 

908,737,729 
Prior period adjustm

ents (N
ote 44) 

– 
–

– 
– 

– 
(718,285,385) 

(718,285,385) 
Balance, January 1, 2005, as restated 

10,000,000,000  
–

– 
– 

– 
(8,072,329,976) 

1,927,670,024 
  

 
 

 
 

  
  

N
et incom

e, as restated 
– 

–
– 

– 
– 

9,174,163,269 
9,174,163,269 

G
ain on AFS investm

ents recognized in  
        equity (N

ote 10) 
– 

–
– 

110,309,139 
– 

– 
110,309,139 

Total recognized incom
e for the year 

– 
–

– 
110,309,139 

– 
9,174,163,269 

9,284,472,408 
Balance, D

ecem
ber 31, 2005 

P=10,000,000,000 
P=–

P=– 
P=110,309,139 

P=– 
P=1,101,833,293 

P=11,212,142,432 
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

Balance, January 1, 2006, as previously 
reported 

P=10,000,000,000 
P=–

P=– 
P=110,309,139 

P=– 
P=1,653,315,043 

P=11,763,624,182 
Im

pact of early adoption of IFR
IC

 12 (N
ote 3) 

– 
–

– 
– 

– 
675,548,451 

675,548,451 
Prior period adjustm

ents (N
ote 44) 

– 
–

– 
– 

– 
(1,227,030,201) 

(1,227,030,201) 
Balance, January 1, 2006, as restated 

10,000,000,000 
–

– 
110,309,139 

– 
1,101,833,293 

11,212,142,432 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
et incom

e, as restated 
– 

–
– 

– 
– 

6,863,341,226 
6,863,341,226 

G
ain on AFS investm

ents recognized in  
         equity (N

ote 10) 
– 

–
– 

22,235,323 
– 

– 
22,235,323 

G
ain on AFS investm

ents rem
oved from

 
 

equity and recognized in profit and  
        loss (N

ote 10) 
– 

–
– 

(1,081,651) 
– 

– 
(1,081,651) 

Total recognized  incom
e for the year 

– 
–

– 
21,153,672 

– 
6,863,341,226 

6,884,494,898  
Appropriation for exploration projects 

– 
–

– 
– 

1,653,315,043 
(1,653,315,043) 

– 
Stock dividends - 20%

 
2,000,000,000 

–
– 

– 
– 

(2,000,000,000) 
– 

Issuance of com
m

on shares (N
ote 22) 

3,000,000,000 
–

6,278,075,648 
– 

– 
– 

9,278,075,648 
Balance, D

ecem
ber 31, 2006 

P=15,000,000,000 
P=–

P=6,278,075,648 
P=131,462,811 

P=1,653,315,043 
P=4,311,859,476 

P=27,374,712,978 

Balance, January 1, 2007, as previously 
reported 

P=15,000,000,000 
P=–

P=6,278,075,648 
P=131,462,811 

P=1,653,315,043 
P=4,782,924,651 

P=27,845,778,153 
Im

pact of early adoption of IFR
IC

 12 (N
ote 3) 

– 
–

– 
– 

– 
1,106,906,850 

1,106,906,850 
Prior period adjustm

ents (N
ote 44) 

– 
–

– 
– 

– 
(1,577,972,025) 

(1,577,972,025) 
Balance, January 1, 2007, as restated 

15,000,000,000 
–

6,278,075,648 
131,462,811 

1,653,315,043 
4,311,859,476 

27,374,712,978 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
et incom

e, as restated 
– 

–
– 

– 
– 

8,651,481,186 
8,651,481,186 

G
ain on AFS investm

ents recognized in  
        equity (N

ote 10) 
– 

–
– 

245,024,166 
– 

 
245,024,166 

G
ain on AFS investm

ents rem
oved from

 
 

equity and recognized in profit and 
 

loss (N
ote 10) 

– 
–

– 
(7,937,724) 

– 
– 

(7,937,724) 
Total recognized incom

e for the year 
– 

–
– 

237,086,442 
– 

8,651,481,186 
8,888,567,628 

Issuance of preferred shares (N
ote 22) 

– 
75,000,000

– 
– 

– 
– 

75,000,000 
C

ash dividends - P=0.099 a share (N
ote 23) 

– 
–

– 
– 

– 
(1,485,000,000) 

(1,485,000,000) 

Balance, D
ecem

ber 31, 2007 
P=15,000,000,000 

P=75,000,000
P=6,278,075,648 

P=368,549,253 
P=1,653,315,043 

P=11,478,340,662 
P=34,853,280,606 

See accom
panying Notes to Financial Statem

ents. 
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S T A T E M E N T  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2007
(With Comparative Figures for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005)

 Years Ended December 31
 2007 2006 2005
  (Restated) (Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Income before income tax  P12,812,475,607 P10,088,971,106 P12,600,669,496
Adjustments for:    

Interest expense  1,567,038,735 2,330,786,357 2,604,375,816
Depreciation and amortization  (Note 12) 260,053,996 128,983,367 114,709,736
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) (3,252,473,403) (2,446,842,473) (6,581,568,490)
Interest income on service concession  (2,236,906,585) (2,357,591,482) (2,470,503,366)
Interest income  (648,736,545) (330,161,680) (446,165,085)
Gain on derivatives  (58,497,977) (145,851,332) 200,262,671

Receipt of inventories from power plant contractor  – (125,636,878) –
Gain on disposals of property and equipment  – (1,730,483) –
Operating income before working capital changes  8,442,953,828 7,140,926,502 6,021,780,778
Decrease (increase) in:    

Trade and other receivables  (570,424,525) 244,158,095 (143,152,562)
Parts and supplies inventories  24,408,083 (82,052,395) 93,437,098
Service concession receivable  4,307,827,549 4,307,827,549 4,307,827,549
Derivative assets  402,498,964 324,754,827 (372,714,468)
Other current assets  382,194,036 (387,302,002) 5,735,578,833

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (2,747,543,551) 1,154,041,585 572,375,484
Net cash generated from operations  10,241,914,384 12,702,354,161 16,215,132,712
Income taxes paid  (2,382,778,768) (3,277,594,061) (380,688,835)
Interest paid  (1,567,038,735) (2,330,786,357) (2,604,375,816)
Net cash fl ows from operating activities  6,292,096,881 7,093,973,743 13,230,068,061
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Interest received  648,736,545 330,161,680 446,165,085
Decrease in exploration and evaluation assets  461,679,362 623,844,176 3,288,783,303
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent assets  430,780,017 (503,784,092) (451,661,034)
Increase (decrease) in available-for-sale investments  401,248,134 1,473,118,337 (2,683,469,705)
Proceeds from sale of investment  45,000,000 62,500  (62,500)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 3,210,009 2,175,000  –
Addition to intangible asset  (108,813,951) (6,599,983,742) (2,194,333,202)
Additions to property and equipment  (Note 12) (158,166,483) (540,830,419) (967,958,447)
Decrease in due to PNOC  (350,844,177) (13,323,561) (96,143,183)
Net cash fl ows from (used in) investing activities  1,372,829,456 (5,228,560,121) (2,658,679,683)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Proceeds from  issuance of preferred shares (Note 22) 75,000,000 – –
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities  72,496,772 (3,805,337,473) (6,017,750,328)
Proceeds from (payments to) affi liated companies  4,785,103 (2,191,285) 1,421,864
Proceeds from initial public offering (Note 22) – 9,278,075,648 –
Proceeds from loan availments  – 2,725,632,762 2,437,307,488
Payment of cash dividend (Note 23) (1,485,000,000) – –
Payments of long-term debt   (13,533,828,862) (4,512,480,992) (3,388,597,422)
Net cash fl ows from (used in) fi nancing activities  (14,866,546,987) 3,683,698,660 (6,967,618,398)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS  (7,201,620,650) 5,549,112,282 3,603,769,980
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,999,202,227 4,450,089,945 846,319,965
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  P2,797,581,577 P9,999,202,227 P4,450,089,945
   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

 
1. Corporate Information  
 

PNOC Energy Development Corporation (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in the 
Philippines whose shares are publicly traded. It was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) on March 5, 1976.  The Company is involved in geothermal steam production and 
power generation business, and drilling and consultancy services. 
 
The Company became a subsidiary of Red Vulcan Holdings Corporation starting  
November 29, 2007.  Red Vulcan Holdings Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of First Gen 
Corporation, a publicly listed entity.  The ultimate parent of the Company is First Philippine Holdings 
Corporation. 
 
The registered office address of the Company is Merritt Road, Ft. Bonifacio, Taguig City, Metro Manila.   
 
The Board of Directors (BOD) approved and authorized for issue the Company s financial statements on 
January 22, 2008. 

 
 
2. Basis of Preparation  

 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivatives and AFS 
investments that have been measured at fair value.  The financial statements are presented in Philippine 
peso, the Company s functional currency.  
 
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS). 
 
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except as follows: 
 
The Company has adopted the following new and amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations during the 
year.  Adoption of these new and amended standards and Interpretations did not have any significant effect 
on the financial performance or position of the Company.  They did however give rise to additional 
disclosures, including in some cases, revisions to accounting policies. 
 

• PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
• Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 1 Amendment - Presentation of Financial Statements 
• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2, Share-based Payment 
• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 
• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 
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The Company has also early adopted Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession 
Arrangements.  The effect of adopting Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 is discussed in Note 3.  
 
The principal effects of these changes are as follows: 
 
PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
This standard introduces new disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments.  It 
requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from 
financial instruments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market 
risk, as well as sensitivity analysis to market risk.  It replaces PAS 30, Disclosures in the Financial 
Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions, and the disclosure requirements in PAS 32, 
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation.  It is applicable to all entities that report under PFRS.  
Adoption of this standard resulted to the inclusion of additional disclosures such as market risk sensitivity 
analysis, contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities and aging analysis on financial assets that are 
neither past due nor impaired (see Note 42).  The Company availed of the transitional relief on disclosure of 
comparative information  
 
Amendment to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements 
This amendment introduces disclosures about the level of the Company s capital and how it manages 
capital.  Adoption of the Amendment resulted to the inclusion of additional disclosures on capital 
management (see Note 42). 
 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 8, Scope of PFRS 2, Share-based Payment 
This Interpretation requires PFRS 2 to be applied to any arrangements in which the entity cannot identify 
specifically some or all of the goods received, in particular where equity instruments are issued for 
consideration which appears to be less than fair value. As the Company does not have any such 
transaction, the Interpretation had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Company. 
 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9 states that the date to assess the existence of an embedded derivative is 
the date that an entity first becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment only if there is a change to 
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows.  Adoption of this Interpretation had no significant 
impact on the financial position or performance of the Company. 
 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 
The Company adopted Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 10 as of January 1, 2007, which requires that an 
entity must not reverse an impairment loss recognized in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill or 
an investment in either an equity instrument or a financial asset carried at cost. As the Company has no 
goodwill and had no impairment losses previously reversed with respect to its investments in AFS equity 
instruments, the Interpretation had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Company. 
 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements 
The Company has elected to early adopt Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 as of January 1, 2007, as it 
applies to the infrastructure and other assets constructed or acquired by the Company in connection with 
its geothermal service contracts, geothermal resources sales agreements, and  

.
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power purchase agreements with the Government of the Republic of the Philippines and certain of its 
agencies.  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2008.  This Interpretation applies to service concession operators and explains how to account 
for the obligations undertaken and rights received in service concession arrangements.  Refer to Note 3 for 
the detailed discussion on the impact of adopting this Interpretation. 

 
 
3. Effect of Adoption of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 

 
As discussed in Note 2 and as allowed by its transitional provisions, the Company early adopted Philippine 
Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements, on its service concession and related 
arrangements as more fully described in Note 34.  Accordingly, the Company has recognized the 
consideration received or receivable in exchange for its infrastructure construction services or its 
acquisition of infrastructure to be used in the arrangements as either a financial asset to the extent that the 
Company has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset for its construction 
services from or at the direction of the grantor, or an intangible asset for the right to charge users of the 
public service. 
 
Adoption of this Interpretation resulted in the following: 
• Derecognition of the carrying amounts of the concession assets consisting of the production wells, fluid 

collection and recycling systems, building infrastructures, power plants and other assets amounting to  
P=44,672.94 million as of January 1, 2005; 

• Recognition of financial assets initially at the fair value of the construction services and subsequently 
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, which had a carrying amount of  
P=42,753.90 million as of January 1, 2005; 

• Recognition of the aggregate effect on retained earnings as of January 1, 2005 of the profits on 
construction services; elimination of depreciation and amortization expenses on the concession assets; 
reduction in revenues relating to the collection of the financial assets; interest income on the 
amortization of the financial assets and the amortization of the intangible asset, which resulted to an 
increase of P=908.74 million as of January 1, 2005. 
 

The effect of adopting this Interpretation has increased the reported net income in 2006 by  
P=431.36 million and has decreased the reported net income in 2005 by P=233.19 million; and has increased 
the reported total assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 by P=1,106.91 million and  
P=675.55 million, respectively. 

 
The effect of adopting this Interpretation is an increase in the reported basic/diluted earnings per share in 
2006 by P=0.036 and a decrease by P=0.019 in 2005. 
 
As allowed by the transition provisions of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, the Company applied this 
Interpretation retroactive to January 1, 2005. 
 

 
4. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates 
 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.  However, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require material adjustments to the carrying 
amounts of the assets or liabilities in the future.   
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JUDGMENTS 
In the process of applying the Company s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgment, apart from those involving estimates, which has the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements: 

Functional currency 
The Company s transactions are denominated or settled in various currencies such as the Philippine peso, 
US dollar, and Japanese yen.  The Company has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine 
peso, which management has evaluated to be the currency that most faithfully represents the economic 
substance of the Company s underlying transactions, events and conditions. 
 
Service concession arrangements 
In applying Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, the Company has made a judgment that its service contracts 
in Tongonan, Leyte; Palinpinon, Negros Oriental; Bacon-Manito in Albay and Sorsogon; and Mt. Apo in 
North Cotabato qualify under the financial asset model; while its service contract in Northern Negros 
qualifies under the intangible asset model.  Refer to the accounting policy on service concession 
arrangements for the discussion of financial asset model and intangible asset model.  
 
Deferred revenue on stored energy 
Under the Company s addendum agreements with National Power Corporation (NPC), the Company has 
commitment to NPC for certain stored energy that NPC can lift for a certain specified period provided that 
the Company is able to generate such energy over and above the nominated energy for each given year in 
accordance with the related power purchase agreements.  The Company has made a judgment based on 
historical information that the probability of future liftings by NPC from the stored energy is remote and 
accordingly has not deferred any portion of the collected revenues.  The stored energy commitments are 
however disclosed in the financial statements under the discussion on contingencies and commitments 
(see Note 43). 
 
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS  
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance 
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 
 
Impairment of receivables 
The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts at a level that management considers 
adequate to provide for potential uncollectibility of its trade and other receivables, and its receivables 
arising from service concession arrangements.  The Company evaluates specific balances where 
management has information that certain amounts may not be collectible.  In these cases, the Company 
uses judgment, based on available facts and circumstances, and based on a review of the factors that 
affect the collectibility of the accounts including, but not limited to, the age and status of the receivables, 
collection experience, past loss experience and, in the case of the receivables arising from service 
concession arrangements, the expected net cash inflows from the concession.  The review is made by 
management on a continuing basis to identify accounts to be provided with allowance.  These specific 
reserves are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information received affects the amount estimated.   
 
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and receivables arising from service concession 
arrangements are P=4,925.68 million and P=36,895.42 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2007  
(P=4,355.26 million and P=38,966.34 million in 2006). 
 
In addition to specific allowance against individually significant receivables, the Company also makes a 
collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not specifically identified as requiring a 
specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted.  This collective allowance is 
based on historical default experience. 
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Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at each 
reporting date. These non-financial assets (intangible assets arising from service concession arrangements
property and equipment, investment property, deferred income tax assets and claim for excess input vat) 
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.  
Where the collection of a tax claim is uncertain based on the assessment of the Company s legal counsel, 
the Company provides an allowance for impairment.  When value in use calculations are undertaken, 
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash generating unit and 
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details, 
including a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions, are given in Note 42. 
 
Estimating useful life of intangible asset arising from service concession arrangement and property and 
equipment 
The Company estimates the useful life of intangible asset arising from service concession arrangement and 
property and equipment based on the period over which the asset is expected to be available for use and 
on the collective assessment of industry practices, internal evaluation and experience with similar 
arrangements.  The estimated useful life is revisited periodically and updated if expectations differ 
materially from previous estimates.  For purposes of determining the estimated useful life of the intangible 
asset arising from a service concession arrangement, the Company included the renewal period on the 
basis of the constitutional and contractual provisions and the Company s historical experience of obtaining 
approvals of such renewals at no significant cost.  The carrying amount of the intangible asset arising from 
a service concession arrangement and property and equipment are P=8,738.84 million and P=1,111.02 
million as of December 31, 2007 (P=8,794.32 million and P=2,469.22 million in 2006). 
 
Exploration and evaluation assets 
Exploration and evaluation costs are capitalized in accordance with PFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation 
of Mineral Resources.  Capitalization of these costs is based, on certain instances, on management's 
judgment of the degree to which the expenditure can be associated with finding specific geothermal reserve
The Company determines impairment of projects based on the technical assessment of its resident 
scientists in various disciplines or based on management s  decision not to pursue any further commercial 
development of its exploration projects.  At December 31, 2007, the carrying amount of capitalized 
exploration and evaluation costs was P=1,171.92 million (P=1,614.92 million in 2006). 
 
Retirement and other post-employment benefits 
The cost of defined benefit retirement plan and other post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits is 
determined using actuarial valuations.  The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount 
rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future retirement pay 
increases.  Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. 
The net retirement benefit liability at December 31, 2007 is P=912.07 million (P=869.57 million in 2006).  
Further details are given in Note 39. 
 
Provision for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs 
In determining the amount of provisions for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs, assumptions 
and estimates are required in relation to the expected cost to dismantle, remove or restore sites and 
infrastructure when such obligation exists.  The Company has made an assessment that such costs are not 
significant as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. 
 
Provision for liabilities on regulatory assessments 
The Company is currently involved in certain regulatory assessments.  The Company s estimate of the 
probable costs for the resolution of these assessments has been developed in consultation with in-house 
and outside counsels and is based upon the analysis of the potential results.  It is possible, however, that 
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness 
of strategies relating to these proceedings.  As of December 31, 2007 provision for liabilities on these 
regulatory assessments amount to P=1,364.76 million (P=1,047.31 million in 2006). 
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Impairment of AFS financial assets 
The Company classifies certain assets as AFS and recognizes movements in their fair value in equity.  
When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in value to determine 
whether it is an impairment that should be recognized in profit or loss. At December 31, 2007 no 
impairment losses have been recognized for AFS financial assets (2006: NIL).  The carrying amount of 
AFS financial assets was P=1,194.00 million (P=1,353.90 million in 2006). 
 
Deferred income tax assets 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the assets can be utilized.  Significant management judgment is required to determine the 
amount of net deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future 
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.  The carrying value of recognized deferred 
income tax assets at December 31, 2007 was P=3,052.792 million (P=4,919.95 million in 2006).  There are no 
unrecognized deferred income tax assets at December 31, 2007 (2006: NIL).  Further details are contained 
in Note 30. 
 
Fair values of embedded derivatives 
The fair values of embedded derivatives that are not quoted in active markets are determined using 
valuation techniques.  Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, they are validated and 
periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area that created them.  All models are 
reviewed before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and 
comparative market prices.  To the extent practicable, models use only observable data, however areas 
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management to make 
estimates.  Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial 
instruments.  Refer to Note 42 for information on the carrying values of these instruments. 

 
 
5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company's functional and 
presentation currency.  Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency 
rate ruling at the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  All 
differences are taken to profit or loss.  Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.  
Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at 
the date when the fair value is determined.  
 
PARTS AND SUPPLIES INVENTORIES 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Cost includes invoice amount, net of 
trade and cash discounts.  Cost is calculated using the moving-average method. Net realizable value 
represents the current replacement costs. 
 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses.  Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and equipment when that cost is 
incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.  All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit 
or loss as incurred.  
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.  An item of 
property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the 
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year the asset is derecognized.  The assets  residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. 
 
Construction in progress is stated at cost and is not depreciated until such time that the assets are 
completed and/or put into operational use. 
 
NONCURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
Assets are classified as noncurrent assets held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met 
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition.  
Management must be committed to the sale that should be expected to qualify for recognition as a 
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.   
 
Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell and depreciation on such assets cease. 
 
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.  The carrying amount 
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the 
recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property.  
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.  
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in profit or loss 
in the year of retirement or disposal. 
 
No assets held under operating lease have been classified as investment properties. 
 
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS 
Public-to-private service concession arrangements where: (a) the grantor controls or regulates what 
services the Company must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what 
price; and (b) the grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise-any significant 
residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement are accounted for under the 
provisions of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12.  Infrastructures used in a public-to-private service 
concession arrangement for its entire useful life (whole-of-life assets) are within the scope of this 
Interpretation if the conditions in (a) are met.   

This Interpretation applies to both: (a) infrastructure that the Company constructs or acquires from a third 
party for the purpose of the service arrangement; and (b) existing infrastructure to which the grantor gives 
the Company access for the purpose of the service arrangement. 
 
Infrastructures within the scope of this Interpretation are not recognized as property and equipment of the 
Company.  Under the terms of contractual arrangements within the scope of this Interpretation, the 
Company acts as a service provider.  The Company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or 
upgrade services) used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure 
(operation services) for a specified period of time. 
 
The Company recognizes and measures revenue in accordance with PAS 11, Construction Contracts, and 
PAS 18, Revenues, for the services it performs.  If the Company performs more than one service (i.e. 
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement, 
consideration received or receivable shall be allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the 
services delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable. 
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When the Company provides construction or upgrade services, the consideration received or receivable by 
the Company is recognized at its fair value.  The Company accounts for revenue and costs relating to 
construction or upgrade services in accordance with PAS 11.  Revenue from construction contracts is 
recognized based on the percentage-of-completion method, measured by reference to the percentage of 
costs incurred to date to estimated total costs for each contract.  The Company accounts for revenue and 
costs relating to operation services in accordance with PAS 18. 
 
The Company recognizes a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.  
The Company recognizes an intangible asset to the extent that it receives a right (a license) to charge 
users of the public service. 
 
When the Company has contractual obligations it must fulfill as a condition of its license (a) to maintain the 
infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified condition 
before it is handed over to the grantor at the end of the service arrangement, it recognizes and measures 
these contractual obligations in accordance with PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the present obligation at 
the balance sheet date. 
 
In accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, borrowing costs attributable to the arrangement are 
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred unless the Company has a contractual 
right to receive an intangible asset (a right to charge users of the public service).  In this case, borrowing 
costs attributable to the arrangement are capitalized during the construction phase of the arrangement in 
accordance with the allowed alternative treatment under that Standard. 
 
INTANGIBLE ASSET 
The Company s intangible asset pertains mainly to its right to charge users of the public service in 
connection with the service concession and related arrangements.  This is recognized initially at the fair 
value of the construction services.  Following initial recognition, the intangible asset is carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. 
 
The intangible asset is amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life 
which is the service concession period, and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the intangible asset may be impaired.  The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed 
at least at each financial yearend.  Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the 
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.  The 
amortization expense is recognized in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of 
the intangible asset. 
 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognized. 
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EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 
All costs incurred in the geological and geophysical activities such as costs of topographical, geological and 
geophysical studies; rights of access to properties to conduct those studies; salaries and other expenses of 
geologists, geophysical crews, or others conducting those studies are charged outright to expense.  

If the results of initial geological and geophysical activities reveal the presence of geothermal resource that 
will require further exploration and drilling, subsequent exploration and drilling costs are accumulated and 
deferred under the Exploration and Evaluation Assets account.   
 
These costs include the following:  

 
a. costs associated with the construction of temporary facilities; 

 
b. costs of drilling exploratory and exploratory-type stratigraphic test wells, pending determination of 

whether the wells can produce proved reserves; and, 
 

c. costs of local administration, finance, general and security services, surface facilities and other local 
costs in preparing for and supporting the drilling activities, etc. incurred during the drilling of 
exploratory wells.  

 
After tests conducted on the drilled exploratory wells reveal that these wells cannot produce proved 
reserves, the capitalized costs are charged to expense except when management decides to use the 
unproductive wells, for recycling or waste disposal. 
 
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Company estimates the asset s recoverable amount.  An asset s recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset s or cash-generating unit s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or group of assets.  Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In 
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.  These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available 
fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in profit or loss in those expense categories 
consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for property previously revalued where the 
revaluation was taken to equity. In this case the impairment is also recognized in equity up to the amount of 
any previous revaluation. 

 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any 
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If 
such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of recoverable amount.  A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If that is the case the carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for 
the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 
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Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, are 
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.  When financial assets are recognized 
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or 
loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed 
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial yearend. 
 
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the date 
that the Company commits to purchase the asset.  Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales 
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace. 

 
Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and 
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  This is not generally 
the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the 
balance sheet. 
 
Fair value  
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at the balance sheet date is based on their 
quoted market price or dealer price quotations without deduction for transaction costs.  When current bid 
and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the 
current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the 
time of the transaction. 
 
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using 
appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison 
to similar instruments for which observable market prices exist, and other relevant valuation models. 
 
Day 1  profit 
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables 
include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction 
price and fair value (a Day 1 profit) in the statement of income.  In cases where use is made of data which 
is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the 
statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.  For 
each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1  profit amount
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near 
term.  Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless 
they are designated as effective hedging instruments or a financial guarantee contract.  Gains or losses on 
investments held for trading are recognized in profit or loss. 

 
The Company assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host contracts 
when the Company first becomes party to the contract.  Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in 
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.  An 
embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if all of the 
following conditions are met: (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not 

 
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

.
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closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract; (b) a separate instrument with 
the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and (c) the hybrid or 
combined instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value reported in net profit or loss. 
 
Classified under this category are the Company s bifurcated embedded derivatives. 

 
Held-to-maturity investments 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as 
held-to-maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  After initial 
measurement held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method.  Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the investments are derecognized or 
impaired, as well as through the amortization process. 
 
The Company has no held-to-maturity investments as of December 31, 2007 (2006: NIL). 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.  After initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.  Gains and losses are recognized in 
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the 
amortization process.   
 
Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the balance sheet 
date.  Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. 
 
Classified under loans and receivables are trade receivables and other receivables, service concession 
receivable and due from affiliated companies.    
 
Available-for-sale financial investments 
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as such or 
are not classified as financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss, held-to-maturity 
investments or loans and receivables.  They are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in 
response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.   
 
Available-for-sale financial investments are initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable 
transaction cost.  After  initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investment are subsequently 
measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses being recognized a separate component of equity 
until the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognized in equity is included in the net profit or loss for the period. 
 
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using 
appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison 
to similar instruments for which observable market prices exist, and other relevant valuation models. 
 
AFS financial assets are classified as current if they are expected to be realized within 12 months from the 
balance sheet date.  Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. 
 
AFS investments include ROP bonds, Golf & Country club, Petron and PLDT shares. 
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Other financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities which include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and due to PNOC 
are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.  
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any related issue costs, 
discount or premium.  Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the liabilities are 
derecognized, as well as through the amortization process.   
 
Impairment of financial assets 
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired. 
 
Assets carried at amortized cost 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at 
initial recognition).  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The 
amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss. 
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized 
cost at the reversal date.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

 
In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such 
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will not be 
able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the 
receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognized when they 
are assessed as uncollectible. 
 
Available-for-sale financial investments 
If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any 
principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously 
recognized in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.  Reversals in respect of equity 
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognized in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment 
losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument 
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 
 
Financial asset 
A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized when: 
 
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed as obligation to 

them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or  
• the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control of the asset. 

 
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
“pass-through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company s 
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continuing involvement in the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

 
Financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such exchange or modification is 
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Company s statement of income. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
 
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash 
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  Where the 
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, 
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.  
The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of any reimbursement.  If the effect 
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, 
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.  Where discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
 
LEASES 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.  
 
Company as a lessee 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 
 
Company as a lessor 
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same bases 
as rental income.  Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
 
REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duty.  The following specific 
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized: 
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Revenue from sale of electricity and steam  
(For service contracts qualifying under the intangible asset model and for other revenue streams for the 
financial asset model of service concession arrangements) 
 
Sale of electricity is consummated whenever the electricity generated by the Company is transmitted to the 
transmission line of the buyer for a consideration.  Sale of steam is recognized when the steam generated 
by the Company or its by-product passes to the flowmeters installed at the interface point for conversion by 
the buyer into power.  Revenues from sale of electricity and steam are based on sales price, net of the 
portion of the billings representing collection of concession receivable and related interest charges. 
 
Interest income 
Revenue is recognized as interest accrues (using the effective interest rate, that is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset). 
 
Construction revenue 
Construction revenue is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the 
balance sheet date.  When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the 
expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately. 
 
Rendering of services 
Revenue is recognized as services are rendered.  
 
RETIREMENT AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
The Company maintains a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan.  The Company also 
provides post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits which are unfunded.  The cost of providing 
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation 
method.  Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative 
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 10% of the 
higher of the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets at that date.  These gains or 
losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in 
the plan. 
 
The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until the 
benefits become vested.  If the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction of, or 
changes to, the retirement plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.  The defined benefit asset or 
liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation less past service cost not yet 
recognized and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.  The 
value of any asset is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet recognized and the present value 
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future 
contributions to the plan. 
 
BORROWING COSTS 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, are 
added to the cost of the assets, until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use 
or sale, which necessarily take a substantial period of time. Income earned on the temporary investment of 
specific borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalization.  All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which 
they are incurred. 
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TAXES 
 
Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 
 
Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in  
profit or loss. 
 
Deferred income tax 
Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet 
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes.  Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 
 
• where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

 
• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and 

interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be 
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.  

 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilized except: 

 
• where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

 
• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates 

and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is 
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred income tax asset to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each 
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit 
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 
 
Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or 
loss. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
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Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except: 
 
•  where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 

authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense item as applicable; and 

 
• receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included. 
 
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 
 
CONTINGENCIES 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.  These are disclosed unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent assets are not 
recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of resources is probable. 

 
EARNINGS PER SHARE 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number 
of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect to any stock 
dividends or stock splits, if any, declared during the year. 

 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average 
number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of 
common shares that would be issued for outstanding common stock equivalent.  The Company does not 
have dilutive common stock equivalents. 
 
SEGMENT REPORTING 
For management purposes, the Company s operating businesses are organized and managed separately 
according to the nature of the products and services provided.  Financial information on business segment 
is presented in Note 33.  The Company has one geographical segment and derives principally all its 
revenues from domestic operations. 
 
EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
Post-year-end events that provide additional information about the Company s position at the balance 
sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements.  Post-year-end events that are not 
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material. 
 
FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Standards issued but not yet effective 
 
PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements 
A revised PAS 1, Presentation of financial statements is to be applied for annual periods beginning on or 
before January 1, 2009.  The main revisions to PAS 1 arise from the IASB s consideration of the US 
standard SFAS 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income.  The IASB has also taken the opportunity to 
improve the structure and wordings of PAS 1. 
 
PAS 23, Borrowing Costs 
A revised PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, was issued in March 2007, and becomes effective for financial years 
beginning on or after January 1, 2009.  The standard has been revised to require capitalization of 
borrowing costs when such costs relate to a qualifying asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.  

The Company expects that this revision will have no impact on the Company s financial statements since 
the Company is already capitalizing borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets. 

 
Sales tax 
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13 was issued in June 2007 and becomes effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after July 1, 2008.  This Interpretation requires customer loyalty award credits to be 
accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are granted and therefore 
part of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the award credits and deferred over the 
period that the award credits are fulfilled.  The Company expects that this interpretation will have no impact 
on the Company s financial statements as no such schemes currently exist. 
 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding 
Requirements and their Interaction 
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14 was issued in July 2007 and becomes effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2008.  This Interpretation provides guidance on how to assess the limit on 
the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognized as an asset under PAS 19, 
Employee Benefits.  The Company expects that this Interpretation will have no impact on its financial 
position or performance. 

 
 
6. Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 

 2007 2006 
Cash on hand and in banks P=16,353,040 P=60,380,562 
Cash equivalents  2,781,228,537 9,938,821,665 
  P=2,797,581,577 P=9,999,202,227 

 
Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.  Cash equivalents consist of money 
market placements which are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate 
cash requirements of the Company and earned interest of P=304.48 million in 2007 (P=318.11 million in 
2006). 

 
 
7. Trade and Other Receivables 
 

 2007 2006 
Trade  P=4,674,443,525 P=4,232,642,072 
Others 628,456,657 122,614,987 
 5,302,900,182 4,355,257,059 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 377,218,598 – 
 P=4,925,681,584 P=4,355,257,059 

 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days  terms while other receivables 
comprise mainly of receivables from employees, contractors and suppliers.  

The rollforward analysis of allowance for doubtful accounts, which pertains to trade receivables is 
presented below: 

 
January 1, 2007 P=– 
Charges for the year 377,218,598 
 P=377,218,598 
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In-transit inventories include items not yet received but ownership or title to the goods already passed 
to the Company. 

 
 
9. Other Current Assets 
 

 2007 2006 
Tax credit certificate P=386,956,078 P=711,222,564 
Prepaid expenses 125,589,232 121,117,426 
Advances to contractors 23,037,464 52,223,863 
Restricted cash – 33,212,957 
 P=535,582,774 P=917,776,810 

 
The tax credit certificate pertains to the P=811.22 million certificate issued by the Bureau of Internal 
Revenue (BIR) in 2006.  Of this amount, P=324.27 million was applied against income taxes due as of 
December 31, 2007 (P=100.00 million in 2006). 

 
10.  Available-for-Sale (AFS) Investments 

 
 2007 2006 
Quoted investments   
 Government debt securities  P=1,177,589,987 P=1,341,751,679 
 Equities 16,336,106 12,072,279 
 1,193,926,093 1,353,823,958 
Unquoted investments   
 Equities 74,550 74,550 
 P=1,194,000,643 P=1,353,898,508 

 

 
 
8. Parts and Supplies Inventories 

 
 2007 2006 
Landed   

Drilling tubular products and equipment 
spares P=493,364,974 P=515,495,138  

Pump, production/steam gathering system, 
steam turbine, valves  and valve spares 175,536,519 180,648,919 

Heavy equipment spares 190,242,480 86,901,635 
Chemical, chemical products, gases and 

catalyst 80,965,812 94,503,340 
Electrical, cable, wire product and 

compressor spares 53,232,630 50,031,092 
Measuring instruments, indicators and tools, 

safety equipment and supplies 33,787,261 34,738,670 
Automotive, mechanical, bearing, seals,  

    v-belt, gasket, tires and batteries 29,441,624 34,711,525 
Construction and hardware supplies,  

stationeries and office supplies, hoses, 
communication and other spares and 
supplies 2,852,740 141,178,526 

 1,059,424,040 1,138,208,845 
In transit 75,542,983 22,789,590 
Materials and supplies for disposals 5,077,039 3,453,710 
 P=1,140,044,062 P=1,164,452,145 
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Quoted and unquoted equity investments are included under Other Noncurrent Assets account. 

Gain (loss) on AFS investments is presented under a separate component of equity with details as follows: 
 

 
 2007 2006 
Gain or loss recognized in equity P=377,568,628 P=132,544,462 
Gain or loss removed from equity and 

recognized in profit or loss (9,019,375) (1,081,651) 
Net accumulated unrealized gain or loss on 

AFS investments P=368,549,253 P=131,462,811 
 
The Company uses the specific identification method in determining the cost of securities sold. 
 
 

11. Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale 
 

This account consists of the land owned by the Company in Fort Bonifacio previously presented under the 
following accounts in 2006: 
 

 Area (sq. m.) Amount 
Property and equipment 24,464.87 P=1,399,570,246 
Investment property 4,826.13 272,945,854 
 29,291.00 P=1,672,516,100 
 

The properties were classified as noncurrent assets held for sale in accordance with the Company s Board 
Resolution No. 115 series of 2007 dated November 13, 2007, whereby the Company agreed to sell these 
properties to PNOC.  The Company expects the sale to be completed within one year from  
December 31, 2007. 
 
There are no liabilities directly associated with the noncurrent asset held for sale. 
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12.
 Property and Equipm

ent 

 

2007 
Buildings and 
im

provem
ent 

Exploration, 
m

achinery and 
equipm

ent 
Transportation

equipm
ent

Furniture, 
fixtures and 

equipm
ent 

Laboratory 
equipm

ent 

Land, 
leases and 

im
provem

ent 
C

onstruction
in progress

M
ajor spares 

Surplus assets 
available for sale 

T
o

tal 

C
O

S
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Balance - January 1 
P=348,605,868 

P=1,158,038,095 
P=49,324,273

P=162,660,784 
P=46,070,652 P=1,727,641,708 

P=50,735,205
P=27,236,986 

P=4,266,849 
P=

3,574,580,420 
Additions 

– 
– 

–
– 

– 
235,471 

149,324,599
8,143,778 

462,635 
158,166,483 

R
etirem

ents/W
rite-O

ff 
– 

(614,210) 
(2,508,632)

(6,789,335)
(409,104) 

– 
–

– 
(2,866,469)

(13,187,750) 
R

eclassifications/ 
  Adjustm

ents 
– 

9,986,240 
4,036,110

15,631,082 
3,583,192 

(1,399,570,246) 
(24,426,142)

(9,506,360) 
– 

(1,400,266,124) 

Balance - D
ecem

ber 31 
348,605,868 

1,167,410,125 
50,851,751

171,502,531 
49,244,740 

328,306,933 
175,633,662

25,874,404 
1,863,015 

2,319,293,029 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
C

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
E

D
 D

E
P

R
E

C
IA

T
IO

N
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Balance - January 1 
188,626,885 

705,696,155 
39,087,595

135,287,405 
36,662,701 

– 
–

– 
– 

1,105,360,741 
Additions 

20,053,401 
52,395,147 

5,122,900
14,066,308 

3,268,554 
– 

–
– 

– 
94,906,310 

R
etirem

ents/W
rite-O

ff 
– 

(615,794) 
(2,275,730)

(6,677,119)
(409,098) 

– 
–

– 
– 

(9,977,741) 
R

eclassifications/Adjustm
ents

– 
29,084,813 

–
(11,982,476)

881,026 
– 

–
– 

– 
17,983,363 

Balance - D
ecem

ber 31 
208,680,286 

786,560,321 
41,934,765

130,694,118 
40,403,183 

– 
–

– 
– 

1,208,272,673 

N
et book value 

P=139,925,582 
P=380,849,804 

P=8,916,986
P=40,808,413 

P=8,841,557 
P=328,306,933 

P=175,633,662
P=25,874,404 

P=1,863,015 
P=

1,111,020,356 

2006 
C

O
S

T
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Balance - January 1 

P=345,519,804 
P=651,214,114 

P=53,739,631 P=152,839,306 P=42,336,741 P=1,712,937,830 P=48,182,295
P=19,531,878 

P=1,336,526 
P=3,027,638,125 

Additions 
– 

499,329,083 
– 

– 
– 

14,703,878 
23,599,419

1,691,110 
1,506,929 

540,830,419 
R

etirem
ents/W

rite-O
ff 

(12,824,958) 
(1,683,301) 

(7,256,802) 
(5,574,159)

(1,049,074) 
– 

(21,685,286)
– 

(244,265) 
(50,317,845) 

R
eclassifications/ 

  Adjustm
ents 

15,911,022 
9,178,199 

2,841,444 
15,395,637 

4,782,985 
– 

638,777
6,013,998 

1,667,659 
56,429,721 

Balance - D
ecem

ber 31 
348,605,868 

1,158,038,095 
49,324,273 

162,660,784 
46,070,652 1,727,641,708 

50,735,205
27,236,986 

4,266,849 
3,574,580,420 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

C
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

E
D

 D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Balance - January 1 
169,057,216 

634,409,217 
38,984,360 

127,719,356 
34,610,059 

– 
–

– 
– 

1,004,780,208 
Additions 

28,288,720 
72,825,103 

10,118,974 
13,203,295 

3,693,657 
– 

–
– 

– 
128,129,749 

R
etirem

ents/W
rite-O

ff 
(8,719,051) 

(1,538,165) 
(10,015,739) 

(5,635,246)
(1,641,015) 

– 
–

– 
– 

(27,549,216) 
Balance - D

ecem
ber 31 

188,626,885 
705,696,155 

39,087,595 
135,287,405 

36,662,701 
– 

–
– 

– 
1,105,360,741 

N
et book value 

P=159,978,983 
P=452,341,940 

P=10,236,678 
P=27,373,379 

P=9,407,951 P=1,727,641,708 P=50,735,205
P=27,236,986 

P=4,266,849 
P=2,469,219,679 
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Total costs of assets retired/written-off amounted to P=0.34 million in 2007 and P=0.84 million in 2006, net of 
P=9.98 million and P=27.55 million accumulated depreciation, respectively. 
 
Total purchase commitments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 year amounted to P=27.36 million and  
P=64.51 million, respectively. 
 
Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, there are no property and equipment 
found impaired. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the economic life of the asset as follows: 
 

Buildings and improvements 5-25 years
Exploration, machinery and equipment 2-10 years
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3-10 years
Laboratory equipment 5-10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years

 
As discussed in Note 11, land with a carrying value of P=1,399.57 million was reclassified in 2007 to 
noncurrent assets held for sale.  

 
 
13.  Intangible Asset 

 
  2007 2006 
Cost   
 January 1 P=8,794,316,944 P=2,194,333,202 
 Additions 108,813,951 6,599,983,742 
 December  31 8,903,130,895 8,794,316,944 
Accumulated amortization   
 January 1 – – 
 Provision (164,294,068) – 
 December 31 (164,294,068) – 
Carrying amount P=8,738,836,827 P=8,794,316,944 

 
Amortization expense charged to operations during 2007 amounted to P=164.29 million.  
 
Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, the intangible asset is not impaired. 
 
The intangible asset is being amortized over the term of the related Geothermal Service Contract of the 
Northern Negros Geothermal Project (see Notes 3 and 34). 

 
 
14.  Exploration and Evaluation Assets 

 
 2007 2006 
January 1 P=1,614,922,295 P=2,238,766,471 
Additions 84,962,253 625,431,104 
Transfers to financial assets/intangible asset (527,962,374) (1,249,275,280) 
December 31 P=1,171,922,174 P=1,614,922,295 
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Deferred exploration and evaluation costs pertain to the following project areas: 
 

 2007 2006 
Cabalian, Southern Leyte P=558,363,775 P=363,970,378 
Northern Negros 445,872,148 858,210,728 
Mindanao 76,080,913 – 
Ilocos Norte 48,427,707 39,546,367 
Bacman-Tanawon 37,315,026 37,315,026 
Other areas 5,862,605 315,879,796 
 P=1,171,922,174 P=1,614,922,295 

 
 
15.  Investment Property 
 

2007 
 Land Building Total 
    

Cost    
January 1 P=272,945,854 P=8,570,000 P=281,515,854 
Reclassified to noncurrent asset held 
for sale (see Note 11) (272,945,854) – (272,945,854) 
December 31 – 8,570,000  8,570,000 

    
Accumulated depreciation    

January 1 – 2,594,673 2,594,673 
Additions – 853,618 853,618 
December 31 – 3,448,291 3,448,291 

Net book value P=– P=5,121,709 P=5,121,709 

 
2006 
 Land Building Total
    

Cost    
January 1 P=272,945,854 P=8,570,000 P=281,515,854 
Additions – – – 
December 31 272,945,854 8,570,000 281,515,854 

    
Accumulated depreciation    
January 1 – 1,741,055 1,741,055 
Additions – 853,618 853,618 
December 31 – 2,594,673 2,594,673 

Net book value P=272,945,854 P=5,975,327 P=278,921,181 

 
As discussed in Note 11, the above land was reclassified in 2007 to noncurrent assets held for sale. 
 
Depreciation expense charged to operations amounted to P=0.85 million in 2007 and 2006. 
 
Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, there are no investment property found 
impaired. 
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Fair value of the building as of December 31, 2006 based on the appraisal report of an independent 
appraiser amounted to P=22.67 million.  Management believes that the fair value as of  
December 31, 2007 is not significantly different from the fair value as of the prior year. 

 
 
16.  Other Noncurrent Assets 
 

 2007 2006 
Long-term receivables P=2,981,776,511 P=3,660,076,242  
Prepaid expenses 764,352,330 1,053,172,238 
Deferred royalty fee 464,520,286 896,494,151 
Special deposits and funds 36,785,822 27,826,772 
Cash collateral on PCIR Bonds 3,066,807 3,632,164 
Others 503,454,809 177,926,671 
 P=4,753,956,565 P=5,819,128,238 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,907,331,961 3,597,567,122 
 P=1,846,624,604 P=2,221,561,116 

 
The composition of long-term receivables is as follows:  
 

 2007 2006 
Claims for value added tax (VAT) refund  P=1,894,719,994 P=1,894,719,994 
NPC accounts and other receivables 1,087,056,517 1,765,356,248 
 P=2,981,776,511 P=3,660,076,242 

 
The decrease in long-term receivables pertains mainly to the reclassification to trade accounts receivable 
portion of the receivable from NPC brought about by the agreement between NPC and the Company on 
October 26, 2007. 
 
In 2007, the allowance for doubtful accounts for trade receivables was established after the Company 
performed the regular review of the age and status of the accounts relative to historical collections, 
changes in customer payment terms and other factors that may affect ability to collect payments.  Except 
for accounts covered by special agreements with NPC, it was estimated that accounts outstanding over 
one year or account subject to contractual interpretation-dispute should have 100% provision (see Note 38)
 
Likewise, for other receivables, it was also established that accounts outstanding less than one year should 
have no provision but accounts outstanding over one year should have a 100% provision, which was 
arrived at after assessing individually significant balances.  Provision for individually non-significant 
balances was made on a portfolio or group basis after performing the regular review of the age and status 
of the individual accounts and portfolio/group of accounts relative to historical collections, changes in 
payment terms and other factors that may affect ability to collect payments.   

 
The BIR-related claims pertain to the Company s claims for the refund of input VAT on BOT fees 
amounting to P=1,894.72 million which was initially denied by the BIR regional level on  
July 2, 2002.  Subsequently, on September 2, 2002, the Company submitted a letter for reconsideration, 
RDO 50 endorsed the request for reconsideration to the BIR Head Office legal department and the review 
of the claims is still on going.   
 
The prepaid expenses pertain mainly to the 25% advance payment to Kanematsu Corporation for the 
construction of Northern Negros Geothermal Power Plant Project. 
 
The special deposits and funds mainly consisted of the P=11.73 million sinking fund required by the 
Department of Finance and P=4.72 million escrow account in favor of terminated employees. 

.
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Cash amounting to US$74,057.79 on PCIR Bonds was pledged and deposited with the Bangko Sentral ng 
Pilipinas as collateral to secure the Company s outstanding International Bank of Japan (IBJ) Loans which 
was converted into Republic of the Philippines  (ROP) bonds in a Memorandum of Agreement dated 
November 16, 1992 (see Note 20).  The peso equivalent of the collateral as of December 31, 2007 and 
2006 were P=3.07 million and P=3.63 million, respectively. 
 
The accounts grouped as Others pertained mainly to the input VAT on the purchase of goods and services 
which will be claimed for refund from the BIR. 
 
The rollforward analysis of the allowance for doubtful accounts pertaining to long-term receivables is 
presented below. 
 

 2007 2006 
January 1 P=3,597,567,122 P=4,034,910,390 
Charges for the year 33,382,345 300,090,132 
Recoveries (723,617,506) (737,433,400) 
December 31 P=2,907,331,961 P=3,597,567,122 

 
 
17. Trade and Other Payables 

 
 2007 2006 
Accounts payable - trade P=3,392,254,842 P=5,303,670,215  
Accrued interest and guarantee fees 139,924,021 1,011,270,018 
Withholding and other taxes payable 56,557,449 95,908,096 
SSS and other contributions 38,921,376 5,454,446 
Deferred credits 6,297,836 6,846,940 
Miscellaneous current liabilities 3,826,743 5,915,549 
 P=3,637,782,267 P=6,429,065,264 

 
Accounts payable - trade, which comprised mainly of the accrued capacity fees for  
build-operate-transfer (BOT) plants, decreased due to the full payment of obligations to power plant 
contractor for Malitbog, Mahanagdong and Leyte Optimization power plants.  The comparative amounts 
include recognition of Department of Energy s (DOE) assessment amounting to P=866.40 million 
representing royalty fees for the period 1996 to 1998 relative to the Company s service contracts for 
Southern Negros Geothermal Production Field.  In 2007, a credit adjustment on this expense was made as 
a result of the re-computation of the recoverable costs with the DOE based on the amended provisions set 
in the geothermal service contracts, which allows recovery of the translation effects of the Company s 
foreign loans and financing costs. 
 
The decrease in accrued interest and guarantee fees was due mainly to the settlement of guarantee fees 
on long-term loans.  

 
 
18. Royalty Fee Payable 

 
 2007 2006 
Due to DOE (see Note 35) P=1,477,653,457 P=1,619,678,292 
Due to Local Government Units (LGUs) (see Note 

35) 256,273,707 324,644,631 
 1,733,927,164 1,944,322,923 
Current portion (456,273,707) (524,644,631) 
Long-term portion P=1,277,653,457 P=1,419,678,292 
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A reconciliation of the recognized Day 1  gain and accretion on the deferred royalty fee due to the DOE is 
shown below: 

 
 2007 2006 
Net day 1 gain (loss), January 1 P=397,267,332 P=479,501,891 
Additions 39,769,240 95,703,507 
Accretion (211,445,798) (177,938,066) 
Net day 1 gain (loss), December 31 P=225,590,774 P=397,267,332 

As discussed in Note 35, by virtue of PD 1442, the Company entered into seven service contracts with the 
DOE granting the Company the right to explore, develop, and utilize the country s geothermal resource 
subject to sharing of net proceeds with the government.  The Company pays royalty fees to the DOE and 
LGUs under the arrangement. 
 
The royalty fees are paid to the Department of Energy based on an agreed payment schedule.  As the 
liability is non-interest bearing, a day 1 gain is recognized upon accrual of royalty fee.  The day 1 gain 
pertains to the difference between the maturity value and present value of the royalty fee due.  P=39.77 
million, P=95.70 million, and P=182.22 million were recognized as day 1 gains for 2007, 2006, and 2005, 
respectively, and are included under “Miscellaneous - net” in the statements of income.  Subsequent to 
initial recognition, royalty fee payable is accreted to its maturity value based on its effective interest rate.   
 
The effective interest rate on royalty fee payable ranges from 12.38% to 12.72%, 11.75% to 12.26%, and 
10.89% to 11.58% for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
 
Accretion recognized in 2007, 2006, and 2005 amounted to P=211.45 million, P=177.94 million, and P=140.23 
million, respectively.  Such accretion is included under “Interest expense” in the statements of income.  As 
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the unamortized discount amounted to P=255.59 million and P=397.27 
million, respectively. 

 
 
19.  Obligations to Power Plant Contractors  

 
 Minimum Payments Present Value of Minimum Payments 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Amounts payable under BOT 
Contracts:     
Within one year P=265,744,529 P=2,904,781,721 P=246,719,220 P=2,766,401,494 
In the second to fifth years 
inclusive 100,347,856 434,680,911 96,287,392 413,180,565 
Future finance charges (23,085,773) (159,880,573) – – 

Present value of obligations 343,006,612 3,179,582,059 343,006,612 3,179,582,059 
Amount due for settlement within 

12 months (shown under 
current liabilities) (246,719,220) (2,766,401,494) (246,719,220) (2,766,401,494) 

Amount due for settlement after 
12 months P=96,287,392 P=413,180,565 P=96,287,392 P=413,180,565 

 
This account pertains to the balance of the obligations to the power plant contractors in connection with the 
construction of the geothermal power plants in some of the Company s geothermal service contract areas. 
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20.  Long-Term Debt 

 
The Company s foreign-currency denominated long-term debts were translated into Philippine pesos  
based on the prevailing foreign exchange rates at balance sheet date (USD1=JPY113.688: 
USD1=PHP41.411 on December 31, 2007 and USD1=JPY118.934: USD1=PHP49.045 on  
December 31, 2006). 

The details of the Company s long-term debts are as follows:   
 

Creditor/Project Maturities 
Interest 

rate 2007 2006 

International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development     
 
2969 PH Bacon-Manito Geothermal 
Power Plant  
- USD41 million 

 
 
 

1994 to 2008
 of 1% over 

cost of qualified 
borrowings 

 
 
 

P=213,917,487 

 
 
 

 P=464,006,909 
3164 PH Energy Sector Loan 
 
- USD118 million 

 
 

1995 to 2010
 of 1% over 

cost of qualified 
borrowings 

 
 

1,327,865,958 

 
 

2,017,103,046 
     

 

3702 PH Geothermal Exploration 
Project  
- USD64 million 

 
 

1999 to 2013

 of 1% over 
cost 

of qualified 
borrowings 

 
 

1,194,375,196 

 
 

1,516,373,173 
     

3747 PH Geothermal Exploration 
Project  
- USD114 million  
- JPY12.4 billion 

 
 

1999 to 2014
1999 to 2014

 of 1% over 
cost 

of qualified 
borrowings/3.5% 

 
 

1,353,629,819 
971,506,792 

 
 

1,701,179,610 
1,270,302,115 

 
Overseas Economic 
Cooperation Fund 
     
8th Yen Tongonan I Geothermal 
Power Plant (share in OECF-NPC 
loan) 
- JPY5.8 billion 
- JPY1.5 billion (Restructured) 

 
 
 

1990 to 2010

 
 

3.0%
3.2%

 
 

259,486,510 
117,990,135 

 
 

411,272,172 
163,260,896 

     
9th Yen Palinpinon I Geothermal  
Power Plant 
- JPY 10.8 billion 

 
 

1991 to 2011

 
 

 3.0%

 
 

529,623,002 

 
 

770,899,584 
     
15th Yen Palinpinon I Geothermal 
Power Plant 
- JPY4.0 billion 

 
 

1999 to 2019

 
 

5.7%

 
 

650,141,912 

 
 

800,031,045 
     
18th Yen Palinpinon II Geothermal 
Power Plant 
- JPY77.4 million 

 
 

2003 to 2023

 
 

3.0%

 
 

21,310,198 

 
 

25,681,845 
     

19th Yen Mt. Labo Geothermal  
Project 
- JPY10.8 billion 

 
 

2004 to 2024

 
 

4.9%

 
 

96,686,098 

 
 

115,897,514 

21st Yen Northern Negros Geothermal 
Project 
- JPY14.5 billion, of which JPY5.9 
billion was drawn during the year 2007 to 2027 2.7%/2.3% 3,612,377,416 4,299,364,022 
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National Government 
Principal Collateralized Interest 
Reduction Bonds (PCIR) 
- USD328 thousand  

 
 
 

1992 to 2017

Year 1 - 4 %
2 - 5 %
3 - 5 %

 4-5 - 6 %
6-25 - 6 %

 
 
 
 

13,579,092 

 
 
 
 

16,082,359 

Miyazawa I 
- JPY5.2 billion 

- JPY6.8 billion 

 
 
 
 

June 1, 2009

 
Tranche 
A=3.78%

 
Tranche 

B=1.60% +
LIBOR 

 
 

1,889,975,187 
 

2,471,931,240 

 
 

2,137,344,037 
 

2,795,603,036 

Miyazawa II 
- JPY22.0 billion 

 
 

June 26, 2010 

 
 

 2.37% 7,738,708,293 

 
 

9,516,416,274 

ING Syndicated US$90 Million 5-
Year Loan 
 
- USD45.7 million 
 

- USD44.3 million 

 
 
 
 
 
 

February 21, 
2008 

 
 
 

Tranche 1=3.70% 
+ 6 mos. LIBOR 

Tranche 2=3.39% 
+ 6 mos. LIBOR 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2,327,388,315 
 

1,414,168,571 
 
Land Bank of the Philippines 

- PHP1.5 Billion 
 

June 29, 2008 
Ave. 91-day T-Bill 

+  2% 

 
 

378,409,091 

 
 

882,954,546 

Standard Chartered 5-Year Loan 
-USD75 million 

 
 

August 4, 
2009 

 
 

LIBOR + 2.22% 
 
 

 
 

3,834,671,914 

Total 

Current portion   

22,841,513,426 
 

(2,031,565,879) 

36,480,000,983 
 

(3,171,351,515)

Long-term portion   
 

P=20,809,947,547 
 

P=33,308,649,468 
 

The Principal Collateralized Interest Reduction Bonds (PCIRBs) represents converted outstanding 
International Bank of Japan (IBJ) loans equivalent to USD327,910 to Republic of the Philippines (ROP) 
bonds in a Memorandum of Agreement dated November 16, 1992.  The ROP bonds carry interest rate of 
6.5% per annum payable semi-annually with bullet principal payment in 2017.  A cash collateral amounting 
to US$74,057 was deposited with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas as part of the agreement and will be 
returned to the Company without interest upon full settlement of the bonds. 
 
Embedded prepayment (call) options were bifurcated from the USD90 million ING syndicated loan and 
USD75 million Standard Chartered term loan and presented in the balance sheet as Derivative assets.  The 
changes in fair value of the embedded options are presented below. 
 

 2007 2006 
January 1 P=344,000,988 P=522,904,483 
Changes in fair value during the year 56,011,569 (178,903,496) 
Settlement during the year (400,012,557)  
December 31 P=  P=344,000,987 

 
The changes in fair value during the year are included under Derivative gain (loss) in the statement of 
income. All bifurcated embedded prepayment (call) options were exercised during 2007. 
 

 

Creditor/Project Maturities 
Interest 

rate 2007 2006 

P=P=
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The long-term debts are presented net of unamortized transaction costs.  A rollforward analysis of 
unamortized transactions costs is shown below. 
 

 2007 2006 
January 1 P=95,844,697 P=154,441,805 
Amortization (57,416,753) (48,803,340) 
Foreign exchange gain (4,297,629) (9,793,768) 
December 31 P=34,130,315 P=95,844,697 

 
Amortization during the year is included under “Interest Expense” in the statement of income. 

 
Transaction costs include arrangement/management fee and documentary stamps for ING Syndicated 
(USD 90 million), USD 75 million Standard Chartered, Miyazawa I (JPY 12 billion) and Miyazawa II (JPY 22 
billion) loans. 

 
 
21.  Other Long-Term Liabilities 
 

This account consists of accrued vacation and sick leave entitlement and post-retirement medical/life 
insurance benefits of employees. 

 
 
22.  Capital Stock and Additional Paid-In Capital 

 
The Company is subject to the nationality requirement that at least sixty percent (60%) of its capital stock 
must be owned by Filipino citizens since it is engaged in the exploration and exploitation of the country s 
energy resources. 
 
Details are as follows:  
 

 2007 2006 
Capital stock   

Common stock authorized and issued -  
15,000,000,000 shares @ P=1 par value P=15,000,000,000 P=15,000,000,000 

Preferred stock authorized and issued -  
7,500,000,000 shares @ P=0.01 par value 75,000,000 – 

Additional paid-in capital 6,278,075,648 6,278,075,648 
 

On June 30, 2007, the SEC approved the Company s issuance of 7.5 billion preferred shares with 8% 
cumulative interest and with voting rights, at a par value of P=0.01 share and with a limitation that only 
Filipino citizens can purchase.  The 4.5 billion shares were subscribed and paid by PNOC while the 
remaining 3 billion shares were subscribed and paid by the PNOC EDC Retirement Fund. 
 
On July 10, 2007, PNOC made a follow-on offering of another 3 billion common shares resulting to a total 
of 9 billion common shares, representing 60.00% of the Company s outstanding common shares, being 
listed and traded with the Philippine Stock Exchange.  Thus, the controlling interest of PNOC was reduced 
to 46.70%. 
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On November 29, 2007, the Company was fully privatized through the sale by PNOC of the combined 6 
billion common shares (or 40.00% of total outstanding common shares) and the 7.5 billion preferred shares 
from PNOC and PNOC EDC Retirement Fund, to Red Vulcan Holdings Corporation, a subsidiary of First 
Gen Corporation.  As a result, the Company is now considered a public company under Section 17.2 of the 
Securities Regulation Code, with First Philippine Holdings Corporation as the ultimate Parent Company, 
also a listed company in the Philippines.  
 
As of year of December 31, 2007, there are 656 common stockholders and one (1) preferred shareholder 
of the Company. 
 
 

23.  Retained Earnings 
 

On April 17, 2007, the BOD approved a cash dividend of P=0.099 per share or a total of P=1.485 billion to 
stockholders on record as of May 15, 2007 payable on June 5, 2007.   
 
The Company s retained earnings include a revaluation increment deemed as part of cost of certain 
property and equipment and investment property amounting to P=2,077.89 million, of which P=1,438.56 
million is related to land classified as Noncurrent asset held for sale (see Note 11).  This amount is not 
available for dividend declaration until realized. 

 
 
24. Purchased Services and Utilities 

 

 2007 
2006 

(Restated) 
2005 

(Restated) 
BOT fees P=2,105,680,050 P=4,782,877,101 P=6,438,272,867 
Professional and technical services 387,199,262 180,015,600 170,838,255 
Other purchased utilities 219,335,104 2,933,363 3,309,962 
Other purchased services 166,636,601 97,174,098 81,641,346 
Rig mobilization charges 85,527,042 4,043,465 5,778,151 
Hauling and handling costs  40,958,297 17,085,706 18,191,343 
Contractual employee costs 28,278,317 8,227,076 7,915,974 
Others 4,381,485 4,666,364 3,811,222 
  P=3,037,996,158 P=5,097,022,773 P=6,729,759,120 

 
The 2006 and 2005 balances of some accounts were reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation. 
 

 
25. Operations and Maintenance Expenses 

 

 2007 
2006 

(Restated) 
2005 

(Restated) 
Employee costs P=1,258,171,369 P=1,073,803,172 P=1,041,481,591 
Rental, insurance and taxes 948,320,803 781,286,614 875,151,527 
Maintenance and repairs 647,829,416 451,424,582 350,693,484 
Materials and supplies 569,879,759 416,312,987 463,279,097 
Royalty fees 499,577,821 470,394,682 528,839,664 
Business and other expenses 12,482,584 48,734,673 30,770,558 
Grantor assessment adjustment (866,399,332) – – 
 P=3,069,862,420 P=3,241,956,710 P=3,290,215,921 

The royalty fee adjustment was the result of the re-computation of the recoverable costs with the DOE based on 
the amended provisions set in the geothermal service contracts, which allows recovery of the translation 
effects of the Company s foreign loans and financing costs.  The amended provisions and the royalty 
adjustments were agreed with the DOE in July 2007. 
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The 2006 and 2005 balances of some accounts were reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation. 

 
 
26. General and Administrative Expenses  

 

 2007 
2006 

(Restated) 
2005 

(Restated) 
Employee costs P=968,231,017 P=768,231,969 P=1,026,341,053 
Rental, insurance and taxes  547,152,473 240,029,847 188,204,585 
Purchased services and utilities 345,802,058 254,840,285 225,002,928 
Provision for doubtful accounts 286,828,060 299,176,115 238,503,085 
Materials and supplies 112,145,705 70,789,787 65,432,633 
Business and other expenses 87,303,846 97,237,692 61,351,980 
Depreciation 39,944,942 30,443,300 31,985,421 
Maintenance and repairs 28,145,359 24,156,921 24,493,676 
Others 3,268,160 – – 
Credit adjustment on allowance 

for doubtful accounts (43,130,239) (737,558,359) – 
 P=2,375,691,381 P=1,047,347,557 P=1,861,315,361 

 
 
27. Interest Expense 
 

 2007 2006 2005 
Interest on long-term loans P=1,567,138,662 P=2,325,188,938 P=2,604,498,658 
Interest on short-term loans –  5,704,019 – 
 1,567,138,662 2,330,892,957 2,604,498,658 
Amounts included in the cost of 

qualifying  assets (99,927) (106,600) (122,840) 
 P=1,567,038,735 P=2,330,786,357 P=2,604,375,818 

 
This account pertains to interest charges on long-term and short-term loans.  The amount included in the 
cost of qualifying assets represents the capitalized interest charges on loans utilized for the development of 
Northern Negros Geothermal Project.  

 
 
28.  Foreign Exchange Gains - Net 

 
 2007 2006 2005 

Foreign exchange gains on long-term 
loans P=4,239,574,615 P=2,189,474,403 P=6,607,781,514 

Foreign exchange losses on other 
accounts (339,228,371) (148,460,380) (165,030,990) 

Net P=3,900,346,244 P=2,041,014,023 P=6,442,750,524 
 
This account pertains to foreign exchange gains (losses) on repayment and realignment of foreign loans, 
short-term placements in US dollar denomination and cash in banks in US dollar and Japanese yen 
currencies.  The foreign exchange gain was attributed largely to the realignment of foreign loans because 
of the appreciation of the yen and the peso against the US dollar (December 31, 2007: USD1=JPY113.688/ 
PHP41.411; December 31, 2006: USD1-JPY118.934/PHP49.045; December 31, 2005 
USD1=JPY117.855/PHP53.062). 
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29.  Miscellaneous Income (Charges) - Net 
 

 2007 
2006 

(Restated) 
2005 

(Restated) 
Day 1 gain P=39,769,239 P=95,703,507 P=182,218,941 
Waste disposal fees 17,893,896 18,011,912 – 
Profit on sale of securities 7,937,724 1,081,651 – 
Sale/retirement of fixed assets 7,416,775 – – 
Gain on retirement of parts and supplies 

inventory 5,683,609 – – 
Upper Mahiao Plant materials inventory 

turned over by contractor – 125,636,878 – 
Others (283,114,180) (262,501,969) (279,589,410) 
 (P=204,412,937) (P=22,068,021) (P=97,370,469) 

 
 
30.  Income Taxes 
 

 2007 2006 
Deferred tax assets P=6,753,386,479 P=8,047,196,850 
Deferred tax liability (3,700,593,892) (3,127,242,783) 
Net P=3,052,792,587 P=4,919,954,067 
 

The deferred tax assets consist mainly of the undepreciated balance of the foreign exchange losses on 
payment and realignment of the payable to contractors capitalized under BIR reporting, unrealized foreign 
exchange losses on foreign loans and allowance for doubtful accounts.  The account is net of deferred tax 
liability on the deductible expenses provided under PD 1442 and the increase in fair value of property and 
equipment applied as deemed costs recognized during the conversion to PFRS. 
 
 
The components of the Company s deferred income tax assets and liabilities follow: 

 
Deferred Tax Assets 

 

Foreign exchange 
losses (gains) 

BOT Power Plants 

Unrealized 
foreign 

exchange 
losses (gains) 

Allowance for 
doubtful accounts 

Financial/ 
Tangible Assets Others Total 

At January 1, 2007 P=4,673,833,358 P=1,229,264,289 P=1,064,246,930 P=509,705,776 P=570,146,497 P=8,047,196,850 
Charged to income for 

the period 
 

(327,283,783) (1,013,929,250) 85,184,203 (70,683,170) 32,901,629 
 

(1,293,810,371) 

At December 31, 2007 P=4,346,549,575 P=215,335,039 P=1,149,431,133 P=439,022,606 P=603,048,126 P=6,753,386,479 

 

 

Foreign exchange 
losses (gains) 

BOT Power Plants 

Unrealized 
foreign 

exchange 
losses (gains) 

Allowance for 
doubtful accounts 

Financial/ 
Tangible Assets Others Total 

At January 1, 2006 P=4,924,077,551 P=2,459,898,738 P=1,217,680,715 P=711,713,444 P=63,779,855 P=9,377,150,303 
Charged to income for 

the period (250,244,193) (1,230,634,449) (153,433,785) (202,007,668) 506,366,642 (1,329,953,453) 
At December 31, 2006   P=4,673,833,358 P=1,229,264,289 P=1,064,246,930 P=509,705,776 P=570,146,497 P=8,047,196,850 

 
  

Deferred Tax Liability 
 Deductible 

expenses 
per PD 1442 Others Total 

At January 1, 2007 (P=3,085,955,501) (P=41,287,282) (P=3,127,242,783) 
Charged to income for the period (575,913,974) 2,562,865 (573,351,109) 
At December 31, 2007 (P=3,661,869,475) (P=38,724,417) (P=3,700,593,892) 
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expenses 
per PD 1442 

At January 1, 2006 (P=2,986,489,231) P=56,947,740 (P=2,929,541,491) 
Charged to income for the period (99,466,270) (98,235,022) (197,701,292) 
At December 31, 2006 (P=3,085,955,501) (P=41,287,282) (P=3,127,242,783) 

 
 Deferred Tax 

Assets 
Deferred Tax  
Liability 

Net Deferred Tax  
Assets 

At January 1, 2007 P=8,047,196,850 (P=3,127,242,783) P=4,919,954,067 
Charged to income for the period (1,293,810,371) (573,351,109) (1,867,161,480) 
At December 31, 2007 P=6,753,386,479 (P=3,700,593,892) P=3,052,792,587 
    

 
Deferred Tax 

Assets 
Deferred Tax 

Liability 
Net Deferred Tax 

Assets 
At January 1, 2006 P=9,377,150,303 (P=2,929,541,491) P=6,447,608,812 
Charged to income for the period (1,329,953,453) (197,701,292) (1,527,654,745) 
At December 31, 2006  P=8,047,196,850 (P=3,127,242,783) P=4,919,954,067 

 
Components of income tax expense are as follows: 
 

 2007 2006 2005 
Current tax P=2,293,832,941 P=1,697,975,135 P=1,677,383,618 
Deferred tax 1,867,161,480 1,527,654,745 1,749,122,609 
 P=4,160,994,421 P=3,225,629,880 P=3,426,506,227 

 
A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting income multiplied by the tax rates of 
35.00% in 2007, 2006 and 32.50% in 2005 is as follows: 
 

 2007 2006 2005 
Accounting income  P=12,812,475,607 P=10,088,971,107 P=12,600,669,496 
Tax expense  4,484,366,462 3,531,139,887 4,095,217,586 
Tax effect of non-deductible interest expense 53,375,602 55,866,123 56,284,818 
Non-deductible foreign contractor s tax - 

excess 4,389,682 2,200,505  
Interest income - net of final tax  (106,342,260) (114,072,117) (121,088,650) 
Non-deductible gains on embedded 
 Derivatives – (113,444,854) (604,699,566) 

Effect of change in tax rate (274,795,065) (136,059,664) 792,039 
 P=4,160,994,421 P=3,225,629,880 P=3,426,506,227  

 

 
 Deductible Others Total 
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31. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

The EPS amount was computed as follows: 
 

 2007 2006 2005 
Net income attributable to common 

shareholders P=8,651,481,186 P=6,863,341,226 P=9,174,163,269 
Weighted average numbers of shares 

for EPS 15,000,000,000 12,142,584,872 12,000,000,000 
Basic/diluted EPS P=0.577 P=0.565 P=0.765 

Computation of weighted average number of shares for EPS calculation is as follows: 
 

 
Beginning 

Balance Shares Issued 
Outstanding 

Shares 
Number 

 of Days (1) 

Weighted 
Average 

Number of 
Shares  

December 31, 2005 10,000,000,000 2,000,000,000(1) 
12,000,000,000

 365 12,000,000,000 
December 31, 2006 10,000,000,000 2,000,000,000(1)  365  
  2,608,695,652   18  

  391,304,348 
15,000,000,000

 13 12,142,584,872 

December 31, 2007 15,000,000,000 – 
15,000,000,000

 365 15,000,000,000 
 
(1)

 Retroactive effect of stock dividends declared in 2006 
 
 
32.  Personnel Expenses 

 
 2007 2006 2005 
Salaries and other benefits P=2,018,742,958 P=1,968,065,036 P=1,905,208,595 
Retirement benefit costs (see Note 39) 329,567,591 121,063,507 504,917,081 
Social security costs 42,316,907 35,299,516 35,626,807 
 P=2,390,627,456 P=2,124,428,059 P=2,445,752,483 
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33. Business Segment Information 
 

The Company s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of 
the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
different products and serves different markets. 
 
The Electricity segment refers to the revenue from sale of electricity out of the power plant operations.  
Revenue of this segment is covered by long-term power purchase agreements.  The Steam segment 
pertains to the revenue from the sale of steam which is covered by the Geothermal Service Contracts.   

on and drilling operations.  The Others 

 
The Company operates and generates revenues principally in the Philippines.  Thus, geographical 
business information is not required.  
 
Financial information on the business segments are summarized as follows: 

 
2007      
  Electricity Steam Services Others Total 
Revenue P=13,215,638,368 P=4,834,399,396 P=733,591,782 P=– P=18,783,629,546 
Segment expenses (6,784,168,707) (1,351,068,572) (668,262,070) (1,297,258) (8,804,796,607) 
Segment results 6,431,469,661 3,483,330,824 65,329,712 (1,297,258) 9,978,832,939 
Interest income – – –  648,736,545  648,736,545  
Interest expense – – –  (1,567,038,735)   (1,567,038,735) 
Unallocated corporate 

income    3,751,944,858 3,751,944,858 
Income taxes – – –  (4,160,994,421)   (4,160,994,421) 
Net income P=6,431,469,661 P=3,483,330,824 P=65,329,712 (P=1,328,649,011) P=8,651,481,186 

      
Other information:      
Segment assets P=54,348,783,001 P=975,955,001 P=634,356,803 P=– P=55,959,094,805  
Unallocated corporate      
 assets – – –  9,111,640,061 9,111,640,061 
Total assets P=54,348,783,001 P=975,955,001 P=634,356,803  P=9,111,640,061 P=65,070,734,866 

      
Segment liabilities (P=16,904,127,255) (P=11,570,477,888) (P=90,057,472) P=– (P=28,564,662,615) 
Unallocated corporate       
 liabilities – – –  (1,652,791,645) (1,652,791,645) 
Total liabilities (P=16,904,127,255) (P=11,570,477,888) (P=90,057,472) (P=1,652,791,645) (P=30,217,454,260) 

      
Capital expenditure P=– P=– P=131,276,344  P=26,890,139 P=158,166,483  
Depreciation and      
 amortization 164,294,068 – 95,759,928 – 260,053,996 
Other non-cash items (2,042,556,482) (1,249,671,902) – 39,754,981 (3,252,473,403) 
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The Services segment comprises revenues from constructi
segment includes corporate and technical and administrative support groups. 



 

2006      

 Electricity  Steam   Services   Others   Total  
Revenue P=14,309,670,214  P=4,550,567,548  P=6,861,433,729  P=  P=25,721,671,491  
Segment expenses (6,919,572,964) (2,276,708,328) (6,308,448,005) (441,081) (15,505,170,378) 
Segment results 7,390,097,250  2,273,859,220  552,985,724  (441,081) 10,216,501,113  
Interest income    330,161,680 330,161,680 
Interest expense    (2,330,786,357) (2,330,786,357) 
Unallocated corporate 

income – – – 1,873,094,670 1,873,094,670 
Income taxes    (3,225,629,880) (3,225,629,880) 
Net income P=7,390,097,250  P=2,273,859,220  P=552,985,724  (P=3,353,600,968) P=6,863,341,226  

      
Other information:      
Segment assets P=60,898,234,211  P=1,309,574,832  P=674,401,033  P=  P=62,882,210,076  

Unallocated corporate 
assets    14,510,252,706  14,510,252,706 

Total assets P=60,898,234,211 P=1,309,574,832  P=674,401,033  P=14,510,252,706  P=77,392,462,782 
 

Segment liabilities (P=33,137,844,428) (P=12,776,508,799) (P=89,064,522) P=  (P=46,003,417,749) 

Unallocated corporate 
liabilities – – – (4,014,332,055) (4,014,332,055) 

Total liabilities (P=33,137,844,428) (P=12,776,508,799) (P=89,064,522) (P=4,014,332,055) (P=50,017,749,804) 

      
Capital expenditure P=– P=– P=504,974,708 P=35,855,711 P=540,830,419 

Depreciation and  
amortization – – 128,893,367 – 128,893,367 

Other non-cash items (1,331,094,503) (728,440,287) – (387,307,683) (2,446,842,473) 
 

2005      
 Electricity Steam Services Others Total  
Revenue  P=15,346,083,592 P=4,530,035,664  P=2,343,858,042  P=  P=22,219,977,298  
Segment expenses (9,405,338,809) (2,250,373,216) (2,329,418,126) (21,609,714) (14,006,739,865) 
Segment results  5,940,744,783  2,279,662,448  14,439,916  (21,609,714) 8,213,237,433  
Interest income     446,165,085 446,165,085 
Interest expense     (2,604,375,818) (2,604,375,818) 
Unallocated corporate 

income    6,545,642,796 6,545,642,796 
Income taxes     (3,426,506,227) (3,426,506,227) 
Net income  P=5,940,744,783 P=2,279,662,448  P=14,439,916  P=939,316,122  P=9,174,163,269 

      
Other information:      
Segment assets  P=62,726,984,575  P=7,597,498,410  P=880,346,557  P=  P=71,204,829,542 

Unallocated corporate 
assets    9,781,409,610  9,781,409,610 

Total assets  P=62,726,984,575 P=7,597,498,410  P=880,346,557  P=9,781,409,610 P=80,986,239,152 

      
(Forward) 
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 Electricity Steam Services Others Total  
Segment liabilities  (P=40,642,849,970) (P=14,067,308,381) (P=132,020,248) P=  (P=54,842,178,599) 

Unallocated corporate 
liabilities     (5,595,381,932) (5,595,381,932) 

Total liabilities  (P=40,642,849,970) (P=14,067,308,381) (P=132,020,248) (P=5,595,381,932) (P=60,437,560,531) 

      
Capital expenditure  P=  P=   P=21,584,504 P=23,099,475 P=44,683,979 

Depreciation and 
amortization    639,351,921    639,351,921 

Other non-cash items  (3,441,571,268) (2,472,429,444) – (667,567,778) (6,581,568,490) 
 
 
34. Description of The Service Concession and Related Arrangements 
 

All geothermal resources in public and/or private lands in the Philippines, whether found in, on or under the 
surface of dry lands, creeks, rivers, lakes, or other submerged lands within the waters of the Philippines 
belong to the State, inalienable and imprescriptible, and their exploration, development and exploitation are 
governed under Presidential Decree No. 1442 (PD 1442, An Act to promote the exploration and 
development of geothermal resources).  Under PD 1442, the Government may enter into service contracts 
for the exploration, development and exploitation of geothermal resources. 
 
Pursuant to PD 1442, the Company has entered into the following service contracts with the Government of 
the Republic of the Philippines (Government, represented by the Ministry/Department of Energy) for the 
exploration, development and production of geothermal fluid for commercial utilization: 
 

a. Tongonan, Leyte, dated May 14, 1981 
b. Southern Negros, dated October 16, 1981 
c. Bacman, Sorsogon, dated October 16, 1981 
d. Mt. Apo, Kidapawan, Cotabato, dated March 24, 1992 
e. Mt. Labo, Camarines Norte and Sur, dated March 19, 1994 
f. Northern Negros, dated March 24, 1994 
g. Mt. Cabalian, Southern Leyte, dated January 13, 1997 

 
The exploration period under the service contracts shall be five (5) years from the effective date, renewable 
for another two (2) years if the Company has not been in default in its exploration, financial and other work 
commitments and obligations and has provided a work program for the extension period acceptable to the 
Government.  Where geothermal resource in commercial quantity is discovered during the exploration 
period, the service contracts shall remain in force for the remainder of the exploration period or any 
extension thereof and for an additional period of twenty-five (25) years thereafter, provided that, if the 
Company has not been in default in its obligations under the contracts, the Government may grant an 
additional extension of fifteen (15) to twenty (20) years. 
 
The Company shall acquire for the geothermal operations materials, equipment, plants and other 
installations as are required and necessary to carry out the geothermal operations.  All materials, 
equipment, plants and other installations erected or placed on the contract areas of a movable nature by 
the Company shall remain the property of the Company unless not removed therefrom within one year after 
the expiration and/or termination of the related service contract in which case, ownership shall be vested in 
the Government. 
 
The service contracts provide that, among other privileges, the Company shall have the right to enter into 
agreements for the disposition of the geothermal resources produced from the contract areas, subject to 
the approval of the Government. 
 
Pursuant to such right, the Company has entered into agreements for the sale of the geothermal resources 
produced from the service contract areas principally with the NPC, a government owned and controlled 
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corporation.  These agreements are for 25 years and may be opened for renegotiation by either party after 
5 years from the date of commercial operations. 
 
Pursuant to such right also, the Company has also entered into agreements with NPC for the development, 
construction and operation of a geothermal power plant by the Company in its geothermal service contract 
areas and the sale to NPC of the electrical energy generated from such geothermal power plants.  These 
agreements are for 25 years of commercial operations and may be extended upon the request of the 
Company by notice of not less than 12 months prior to the end of the contract period, the terms and 
conditions of any such extension to be agreed upon by the parties.   
 
The Company s agreements with NPC for the sale of the geothermal resources produced from the service 
contract areas and the sale of the electrical energy generated from the geothermal power plants contain 
certain provisions relating to pricing control in the form of a cap in the Company s internal rate of return for 
specific contracts; as well as for payment by NPC of minimum guaranteed monthly remuneration and 
nominated capacity. 
 
For the Northern Negros service contract, the Company does not have agreements with NPC for the sale of 
the geothermal resources and electrical energy produced from the service contract area.  The Company 
instead enters into contracts with distribution utilities, electric cooperatives and other third party buyers of 
electricity for the sale of the electrical energy generated from the service contract. 
 
The Company has made a judgment that these service concessions and related arrangements qualify for 
accounting under Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements.  Accordingly, the 
Company has recognized the consideration received or receivable in exchange for its infrastructure 
construction services or its acquisition of infrastructure to be used in the arrangements as either a financial 
asset to the extent that the Company has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other 
financial asset for its construction services from or at the direction of the grantor, or an intangible asset for 
the right to charge users of the public service. 
 
Revenue and profits recognized in 2007, 2006 and 2005, on exchanging construction services for a 
financial or an intangible asset amounted to P=108.81 million, P=6,599.98 million, and P=2,194.33 million, 
respectively; and P=7.68 million, P=578.83 million and P=151.61 million, respectively.  
 
The disclosures have been provided in aggregate since management believes that the service concession 
arrangements are similar in nature. 
 
 

35. Service Contracts 
 

As discussed in Note 34, by virtue of PD 1442, the Company entered into seven service contracts with the 
DOE granting the Company the right to explore, develop, and utilize the country s geothermal resource 
subject to sharing of net proceeds with the government.  The net proceeds is what remains after deducting 
from the gross proceeds the allowable recoverable costs, which include development, production and 
operating costs.  
 
The allowable recoverable costs shall not exceed 90% of the gross proceeds.  The Company pays 60% of 
the net proceeds as government share and retains the remaining 40%. 
 
The 60% government share is comprised of royalty fees and income taxes.  The royalty fees are shared by 
the Government through DOE (60%) and the LGU (40%). 
 
The Company secured an approval from the DOE to defer remittance of the royalty portion of the 
Government share at P180 million per year.  A portion of said payment was applied to the amortization of 
the deferred royalty fees as of December 31, 1998, and the balance to 1999 and future obligations.  On 
March 23, 2004, the Company and DOE agreed to increase the royalty payment plan to P200 million per 
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year starting 2004.  A portion of the revised payment shall be applied to the amortization of the deferred 
royalty fees as of December 31, 2003 and the balance to 2004 and future obligations for existing Company 
operating projects.  However, remittances to the local government units of their share in royalty fees are 
made as they fall due pursuant to the Local Government Code. 
 
Total royalty fees due to DOE and to LGUs are shown in Note 18. 
 
The DOE approved the application of the Company for the 20-year extension of the Tongonan, Palinpinon 
and Bacon-Manito Geothermal Service Contracts (GSCs).  The extension is embodied in the fourth 
amendment to the GSCs dated October 30, 2003.  The amendment extended the Tongonan GSC from 
May 15, 2011 to May 16, 2031, while the Palinpinon and Bacon-Manito GSCs are extended from 
October 16, 2011 to October 17, 2031. 

 
 
36. Geothermal Resources Sales Contract 

 
The geothermal energy currently produced by the Company s geothermal projects is supplied to the power 
plants owned and operated by NPC pursuant to the following steam sales contracts: 
 
TONGONAN I 
 
Under the steam sales contract entered in June 1984 for Tongonan I, NPC agrees to pay the Company a 
base price per kilowatt-hour of net generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed 
take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor for a period of twenty-five years. 
 
PALINPINON I 
 
The steam sales contract for Palinpinon I provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base 
price per kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed 
take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor.  The contract is for a period of twenty years commencing on 
December 25, 1988. 
 
PALINPINON II 
 
In June 1996, the Company and NPC signed a steam sales contract for Palinpinon II s four modular plants 
- Nasuji, Okoy, Sogongon I and Sogongon II.  Under the terms and conditions, NPC agrees to pay the 
Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on 
a guaranteed take-or-pay rate commencing from the established commercial operation period, using the 
following plant factors: 50% for the first year, 65% for the second year and 75% for the third and 
subsequent years.  The contract is for a period of twenty-five years for each module commencing on 
December 13, 1993 for Nasuji; November 28, 1994 for Okoy; January 28, 1995 for Sogongon I and March 
23, 1995 for Sogongon II. 
 
BACON-MANITO I 
 
The steam sales contract for the Bacon-Manito (Bacman) geothermal resources entered in November 1988 
provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross 
generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor
The contract is for a period of twenty-five years commencing in May 1993. 
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BACON-MANITO II 
 
Bacman II s steam sales contract with NPC was signed in June 1996 for its two 20-MW capacity modular 
plants - Cawayan and Botong.  The terms and conditions under the contract contain, among others, NPC s 
commitment to pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation 
adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate, commencing from the established commercial 
operation period, using the following plant factors: 50% for the first year, 65% for the second year and 75% 
for the third and subsequent years.  The contract is for a period of twenty-five years commencing in March 
1994 for Cawayan and December 1997 for Botong. 

 
 
37. Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) Contracts  

 
Pursuant to Republic Act Number 7718 dated May 5, 1994 (Amended BOT Law), the Company entered 
into Energy Conversion Agreements (ECA) with various international geothermal power producers for the 
construction and operation of power plants in Leyte and Mindanao to convert the geothermal steam to be 
supplied by the Company to electricity. Under these contracts, the BOT Contractor shall deliver electricity 
to NPC on behalf of the Company. 
 
LEYTE 
 
Under the ECA with the BOT Contractors, namely: California Energy for a) 125 MW Power Plant - Upper 
Mahiao Agreement; b) 231 MW Power Plant - Malitbog Agreement; and c) 180 MW Power Plant - 
Mahanagdong Agreement and with Ormat Inc. for the Leyte Optimization Project BOT Agreement, the 
Company shall pay the BOT Contractors monthly energy fees to be computed based on actual energy 
delivered and capacity fees, which include capital and fixed operating cost recovery fees and service fees, 
to be computed on a per kilowatt nominated capacity basis.  
 
Except for the capital cost recovery portions, the fees are subject to inflation adjustments.  The contracts 
are for a period of ten years commencing July 1996 for the Upper Mahiao Agreement, July 1997 for the 
Malitbog and Mahanagdong Agreements and September 1997 for the Optimization Agreement.  The 
ownership of the Upper Mahiao Power Plant was transferred to the Company on June 25, 2006; Malitbog 
and Mahanagdong Power Plants were transferred on July 25, 2007; and the Optimization Power Plants on 
September 25, 2007. 
 
MINDANAO 
 
Under the terms and conditions of the ECA with Oxbow Power Corporation and Marubeni Corporation, the 
Company shall pay the BOT Contractor monthly energy efficiency fees and capacity fees, which include 
capital and fixed operating cost recovery fees and service fees, to be computed on a per kilowatt 
nominated capacity basis and excess energy fees which are payment for the share of BOT Contractor for 
the revenues from surplus energy generation on top of the nominated energy.  Except for energy efficiency 
payments and capital cost recovery portion of capacity fees, the fees are subject to inflation adjustments.  
The contract is for a period of ten years commencing in March 1997 for Mindanao I (47 MW) and June 
1999 for Mindanao II (48.25 MW).  An Amendment to the Mindanao I ECA was signed on November 17, 
2006 extending the contract period to June 2009 with corresponding restructuring of BOT fees.  
 
The fair value of these BOT contracts are included as part of the fair value of the construction services 
accounted for under Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 as discussed in Note 34. 
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38.  Power Purchase Agreements 

 
The electricity produced by the Company is sold to NPC, pursuant to the following Power Purchase 
Agreements (PPA): 
 
LEYTE-CEBU, LEYTE-LUZON 
 
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of 
electricity delivered subject to inflation adjustments.  The PPA stipulates a contracted annual energy of 
1,370 GWH for Leyte-Cebu and 3,000 GWH for Leyte-Luzon throughout the cooperation period.  It also 
stipulates a nominated energy of not lower than 90% of the contracted annual energy.  
  
On November 12, 1999, NPC agreed to accept from PNOC EDC a combined average annual nominated 
energy of 4,455 GWH for the period July 25, 1999 to July 25, 2000 for both Leyte-Cebu and Leyte-Luzon 
PPA.  The annual nominated energy starting July 25, 2000 and onwards is being contested by NPC, which 
is one of the issues of the ongoing arbitration with NPC.  The contracts are for a period of twenty-five years 
commencing in July 1996 for Leyte-Cebu and July 1997 for Leyte-Luzon (see Note 16). 
 
47 MW MINDANAO I 
 
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of 
electricity delivered subject to inflation adjustments.  The PPA stipulates a minimum offtake energy of 330 
GWH for the first year and 390 GWH per year for the succeeding years.  The contract is for a period of 
twenty-five years commencing in March 1997. 
 
48.25 MW MINDANAO II 
 
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of 
electricity delivered subject to inflation adjustments.  The PPA stipulates a minimum offtake energy of 398 
GWH per year.  The contract is for a period of twenty-five years commencing in June 1999. 
 

 
39. Retirement and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans 
 

The Company maintains a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan.  The plan covers all 
permanent employees and is administered by a trustee bank.  The Company also provides post-retirement 
medical and life insurance benefits which are unfunded.  
 
The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statements of 
income and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheets: 

 
 

 2007 2006 2005 
Current service cost P=137,976,928 P=97,756,610 P=119,616,100 
Interest cost on benefit obligation 154,587,224 150,770,729 192,005,800 
Expected return on plan assets (102,814,445) (122,261,769) (197,662,400) 
Net actuarial gain recognized in the year – (33,404,348) (43,356,400) 
Net benefit expense P=189,749,707 P=92,861,222 P=70,603,100 

   
Actual return on plan assets P=45,943,657 P=152,765,772 P=144,715,700 
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 2007 2006 
Present value of defined benefit obligations P=2,692,826,116 P=2,187,879,669 
Fair value of plan assets (1,626,128,399) (1,468,777,785) 
 1,066,697,717 719,101,884 
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses)  (154,627,960) 150,467,454 
Benefit liability  P=912,069,757 P=869,569,338 

 
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

 
 2007 2006 
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year  P=2,187,879,669 P=1,507,707,292 
Interest cost 154,587,224 150,770,729 
Current service cost 137,976,928 97,756,610 
Benefits paid  (48,593,043) (33,418,770) 
Actuarial losses gains on obligation 260,975,338 465,063,808 
Defined benefit obligation at end of year P=2,692,826,116 P=2,187,879,669 

 
 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:  
 

 2007 2006 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year P=1,468,777,785 P=1,222,617,694 
Expected return  102,814,445 122,261,769 
Contributions by employer 160,000,000 126,813,090 
Benefits paid (48,593,043) (33,418,770) 
Actuarial gains (losses) (56,870,788) 30,504,002 
Fair value of plan assets as at end of year P=1,626,128,399 P=1,468,777,785 

 
The Company expects to contribute P=134.00 million to its defined benefit retirement plan in 2008. 
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: 

 
 2007 2006 
 % % 
Fixed Income  88.23 86.80 
Equities 10.05 10.67  
Real Properties 0.51 0.56 
Others  1.21 1.97 
 100.00 100.00 

 
The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement and post-retirement medical and life 
insurance benefit obligations are as follows: 
 

 2007 2006 
Discount rate 7.00% 7.00% 
Expected rate of return on assets 7.00% 10.00% 
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00% 
Medical trend rate 3.00% – 

 
The assumption on the discount rate is based on the long-term government bond rates approximating the 
expected working life of the employees as published by the Philippine Dealing Exchange Corporation.  The 
assumption on the expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the asset allocation while the 
expected rate of salary increases is based on discussion with the management which is around 2.00% - 
3.00% more than the projected inflation rate of about 3.00% - 4.00%. 
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Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows: 

 
 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 
Defined benefit 

obligation (P=2,672,620,165) (P=2,187,879,669) (P=1,791,112,900) (P=1,758,346,900) (P=2,338,457,300) 
Plan assets 1,626,128,399 1,468,777,785 1,222,617,700 1,594,938,200 1,398,086,630 
Deficit (P=1,046,491,766) (P=719,101,884) (P=568,495,200) (P=163,408,700) (P=940,370,670) 
 
The experience adjustments on plan liabilities amounted to P=7.62 million in 2007 and  
P=137.09 million in 2006. 
 
A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in medical costs would have the following 
effects: 
 

 Increase Decrease 
2007   
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and 

interest cost 15.91% 13.47 %
Effect on the defined benefit obligation 13.22%  11.47 %
   
2006   
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and 

interest cost  – – 
Effect on the defined benefit obligation 14.09% 12.16%

 
 
40. Supplementary Disclosures of Geothermal Reserves 

 
In October 2004, the Company has contracted GeothermEX to provide an independent review of the 
updated geothermal energy reserves estimation made by the Company s Reservoir Engineering 
Department for four geothermal fields:  Bacon-Manito (Luzon), Mindanao (Mindanao), Palinpinon (Southern 
Negros) and Greater Tongonan (Leyte). 
 
Five available methods of estimating geothermal reserves were considered as regards their applicability to 
the Company s fields:  empirical methods, volumetric reserve estimation, decline curve analysis, lumped-
parameter modeling and numerical simulation of the reservoir.  It was concluded that, of these methods, 
only volumetric estimation and numerical simulation are generally useful to the Company in estimating 
reserves.  The Company has conducted numerical simulation to most of its fields.  A detailed review of one 
such simulation study, for Mindanao field, showed it to be reasonable.  It is pointed out that while numerical 
simulation is more sophisticated than volumetric reserve estimation, the latter can be readily conducted in a 
probabilistic way, while the former cannot. 
 
GeothermEX, in their report released in December 2004, used the same volumetric reserve estimation 
method used by PNOC EDC for the various geothermal fields patterned after the United States Geological 
Survey but differ only in the heat recovery factor.  GeothermEX concluded that the Company s estimation is 
conservative due to the low heat recovery factor values of 0.10 to 0.30.  On the other hand, GeothermEX 
estimates of reserves in these field locations are 2.25 times more than those of the Company. 
 
Proved geothermal reserves refer to reserves which can be produced with known certainty and delineated 
in known production limits as confirmed by drilling and production history. 
 
Probable reserves refer to those that could be proven by normal step-out drilling as well as those that could 
be extracted by improved recovery techniques like acidizing. 
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Possible reserves refer to those reserves that are currently unextractable because of resource and 
technology problems but may be found to be commercial in the future. 
 
The following table shows a comparison of estimated geothermal energy reserves from the Company and 
GeothermEX: 
 
Estimated Geothermal Energy Reserves 

Field 

Mean Reserves 
Company 
Estimates 

(MWe) 

Mean Reserves 
GeothermEX 

Estimates 
(MWe) 

Proved Reserves 
GeothermEX 

Estimates 
(MMBFOE) 

Proved Reserves 
GeothermEX 

Estimates 
(GWh of energy) 

Greater Tongonan 
(Leyte) 415 867 145.4 96,940 
Palinpinon (Negros 

Oriental) 170 440 74.4 49,612 
Bacon-Manito (Luzon) 185 421 65.3 43,542 
Mindanao 203 478 54.1 36,105 
Total 973 2,206 339.2   226,199 

 
Source: GeothermEX Report, December 2004 

 
GeothermEX Estimates of Reserves in Million Barrels of Oil Equivalent 

Field 
Proved Reserves 

(MMBFOE) 

Proved Probable 
Reserves 

(MMBFOE) 

Proved Probable 
Possible 

Reserves(MMBFOE) 
Greater Tongonan 145.4 247.2 455.6 
Bacon-Manito 65.3 98.2 222.9 
Palinpinon 74.4 189.0 211.8 
Mindanao 54.1 97.3 171.9 
Total 339.2 631.7 1,062.2 

 
Source: GeothermEX Report, December 2004 
 

 
41. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 

 
The remuneration of the directors and other members of key management personnel by benefit type follow: 

 
 2007 2006 2005 

Short-term employee benefits P=39,626,921 P=40,419,545 P=23,437,384 
Post-employment benefits 76,699,639 60,434,375 58,194,080 
 P=116,326,560 P=100,853,920 P=81,631,464 

 
 
42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

 
The Company s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, AFS investments, and 
long-term debt.  The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Company s operations 
and accordingly manage its exposure to financial risks.  The Company has various financial assets and 
liabilities such as trade receivables, trade payables and other liabilities which arise directly from its 
operations. 
 
The main risks arising from the Company s financial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity 
risk, and foreign currency risk.  The Company s Enterprise Wide Risk Management Program identifies 
these risks based on the likelihood of occurrence and impact to the business, formulates risk management 
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strategies, assesses risk management capabilities and continuously monitors the risk management efforts.  
The BOD s Risk Committee reviews and promulgates policies for managing each of these risks as 
summarized below. 
 
CREDIT RISK 

 
The Company s geothermal and power generation business trades with only one major customer - the 
NPC, a government-owned-and-controlled corporation.  Any failure on the part of NPC to pay its obligations 
to the Company would significantly affect the Company s business operations.  The Company monitors 
closely its collection with NPC. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the 
Company s exposure to bad debts is not significant.  The maximum exposure of trade receivable is equal to 
the carrying amount. 
 
With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash and 
cash equivalents, non-trade and other receivables, AFS financial assets, deferred royalty fee and cash 
collateral on PCIR bonds, the Company s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, 
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.  The Company trades only 
with recognized, creditworthy third parties and/or transacts only with institutions and/or banks which have 
demonstrated financial soundness and which have passed the financial evaluation and accreditation of the 
Company. 
 
The table below shows the Company s aging analysis of past due but not impaired receivables  
as of December 31, 2007: 
 
  Past due but not impaired   

In thousand 
Pesos 

Neither past 
due nor 

impaired 
Less than 

30 days 
31 days 

to 1 year 

Over 1 
year up 

to 
3 years 

Over 
3 years 

Past due 
 or 

 impaired Total 
Trade receivables P=4,297,225 P=– P=– P=– P=– P=1,401,809 P=5,699,034 
Interest receivable 34,120  – – – – 34,120 
Due from employees 97,020 – 4,845 1,472 41 – 103,378 
Due from 

contractors/suppliers 18,158 – 12,018 – – 13,070 43,246 
Due from others 43,246 – 417,536 – – 1,944,116 2,404,898 
Total P=4,489,769 P=– P=434,399 P=1,472 P=41 P=3,358,995 P=8,284,676 
 
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK 
 
The Company s exposure to foreign currency risk resulted from the financial assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in U.S. dollar and Japanese yen.  This primarily arise from future payments of foreign loans, 
BOT lease obligations and other commercial transactions and the Company s investment in ROP Bonds.   
 
The Company s exposure to foreign currency risk to some degree is mitigated by some provisions in the 
Company s geothermal service contracts, steam sales agreements and power purchase agreements.  The 
service contracts allow full cost recovery while the sales contracts include billing adjustments covering the 
movements in Philippine peso and the US dollar rates, US Price and Consumer Indices, and other inflation 
factors. 
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To mitigate the effects of foreign currency risk, the Company will prepay, refinance or hedge its foreign 
currency denominated loans, whenever deemed feasible.   
 
The Company s foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities (translated in Philippine peso) 
as of December 31, 2007 are as follows: 

 
2007 2006 

Original Currency Original Currency 
 Yen US Dollar Peso Equivalent1 Yen US Dollar Peso Equivalent2 
Current 
 Financial 
Assets       
Cash equivalents  2,757,445  114,188,538  5,425,000 266,069,125 
Cash on hand 
and  in banks 6,458,189 65,265 5,055,106 4,508,865 497,639 26,266,015 
Trade and other 
 receivables   1,151,599 49,294,872  1,158,735 61,578,524 
Investment in 
AFS 
 securities       
Quoted 
 investments       
Government debt 
 securities  28,436,647 1,177,589,987  27,357,563 1,341,751,679 
Total Current 
 Financial 
Assets 6,458,189 32,410,956 1,346,128,503 4,508,865 34,438,937 1,695,665,343 
Total Financial 
 Assets 6,458,189 32,410,956 1,346,128,503 4,508,865 34,438,937 1,695,665,343 

 
2007 2006 

Original Currency Original Currency 
 Yen US Dollar Peso Equivalent1 Yen US Dollar Peso Equivalent2 
Current 
Financial 
 Liabilities       
Trade and other 
 payables  1,817,746 75,274,681 1,017,262,067 4,427,423 636,631,670 
Due to parent 
 companies     45,067,955 1,555,445 90,639,645 
Current portion of 
 interest-bearing 
 financial 
 liabilities 680,746,571 972,410,217 1,653,156,788 1,854,675,232 95,185,940 5,433,207,555 
Total Current 
 Financial 
 Liabilities 680,746,571 974,227,963 1,728,431,469 2,917,005,254 101,168,808 6,160,478,870 
Noncurrent 
 Financial 
 Liabilities       
Interest-bearing 
 financial 
 liabilities - net of 
 current portion 17,929,855,693 3,130,957,335 21,060,813,028 51,197,880,324 233,431,062 32,561,114,727 
Total Noncurrent 
 Financial 
 Liabilities 17,929,855,693 3,130,957,335 21,060,813,028 51,197,880,324 233,431,062 32,561,114,727 
Total Financial 
 Liabilities 18,610,602,264 4,105,185,298 22,789,244,497 54,114,885,578 334,599,870 38,721,593,597 
1USD1=JPY113.688 and USD1= P=41.411 
2USD1=JPY118.934 and USD1= P=49.045 
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and 
Japanese yen exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company s profit before tax as 
at December 31, 2007. 
 

 Foreign currency appreciates 
(depreciates) by Effect on profit before tax 

USD PHP0.50 (40,283,248) 
 (PHP3.00) 241,699,488 
JPY PHP0.010 (505,302,869) 
 (PHP0.003) 162,559,770 

 
INTEREST RATE RISK 
 
The Company s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company s 
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates and AFS investments.   
 
The interest rates of some of the Company s long-term borrowings, AFS debt investments and finance 
leases (to which the Company is a lessee) are fixed at the inception of the loan agreement and/or lease.   
 
The Company regularly evaluates its interest rate risk by taking into account the cost of qualified 
borrowings being charged by its creditors.  Prepayment, refinancing or hedging the risks are undertaken 
when deemed feasible and advantageous to the Company. 
 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all 
other variables held constant, of the Company s profit before tax and equity as of December 31, 2007. 

 

 

Increase/decrea
se 

in basis points 
Effect on profit 

before tax 
Effect on 

Equity 
    
PHP +25 (461,348) – 
 50 922,696 – 
    
USD +25 (9,683,970) (9,759,410) 
 50 19,367,940 19,888,289 
    
JPY +10 (2,476,908) – 
 10 2,476,908 – 

 
LIQUIDITY RISK 
 
The Company s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and sourcing flexibility 
through the use of available financial instruments.  The Company manages its liquidity profile to meet its 
working and capital expenditure requirements and service debt obligations.  As part of the liquidity risk 
management program, the Company regularly evaluates and considers the maturity of both its financial 
investments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables, other financial assets) and resorts to short-term 
borrowings whenever its available cash or matured  
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placements are not enough to meet its daily working capital requirements.  To ensure immediate availability 
of short-term borrowings, the company maintains credit lines with banks on a continuing basis.  
 
The table below summarizes the maturity analysis of the Company s financial liabilities at  
December 31, 2007 based on contractual undiscounted payments: 
 
In Thousand 
Pesos 

On 
demand 

Less than 
3 months 

3 to 6 
months 

6 to 12 
months 1 to 5 years 

More than 
5 years Total 

2007        
Trade and other 
payables P=  P=3,032,940 P=604,431 P=411 P=  P=  P=3,637,782 

Trade payables  2,787,413 604,431 411   3,392,255 
Accrued interest and 
guarantee fees  139,924     139,924 

Withholding and 
other taxes payable  56,557     56,557 

SSS and other 
contributions  38,921     38,921 

Deferred credits  6,298     6,298 
Miscellaneous 
current liabilities  3,827     3,827 

Royalty fee 
payables  306,274 50,000 100,000 1,503,244  1,959,518 
Liability to power 
plant contractors  66,436 66,436 132,872 100,348  366,092 

Long-term debt  264,201 1,425,032 1,305,986 19,906,853 3,113,768 26,015,840 
Total P=  P=3,669,851 P=2,145,899 P=1,539,269 P=21,510,445 P=3,113,768 P=31,979,232 

 
In Thousand 
Pesos 

On 
demand 

Less than 3 
months 

3 to 6 
months 

6 to 12 
months 

1 to 5 
years 

More than 
5 years Total 

2006        
Trade and other 
payables P=  P=5,120,778 P=942,721 P=365,566 P=  P=  P=6,429,065 

Trade payables  3,994,144 942,721 365,566   5,302,431 
Accrued interest & 
guarantee fees   1,011,270     1,011,270 

Withholding and 
other taxes payables  95,908     95,908 

SSS and other 
contributions  5,454     5,454 

Deferred credits  6,847     6,847 
Miscellaneous 
current liabilities  7,155     7,155 

Royalty fee payables  374,645 50,000 100,000 1,816,946  2,341,591 
Liability to power 
plant contractors  1,111,477 1,109,923 683,382 434,681  3,339,463 

Long-term debt   1,020,393 1,459,594 3,193,621 31,065,801 4,106,251 40,845,660 
Total P=  P=7,627,293 P=3,562,238 P=4,342,569 P=33,317,428 P=4,106,251 P=52,955,779 
 

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  
 
Fair value 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at the balance sheet date is based on their 
quoted market price or dealer price quotations without deduction for transaction costs.  When current bid 
and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the 
current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the 
time of the transaction. 
 
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using 
appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison 
to similar instruments for which observable market prices exist, and other relevant valuation models. 
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For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using 
appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison 
to similar instruments for which observable market prices exist, and other relevant valuation models. 
 
Set out below is a comparison of carrying amounts and fair values of the Company s financial instruments 
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. 

 
 2007 2006 

Financial assets 
Carrying 
Amount 

Fair 
Value 

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair 
Value 

         
Cash and cash equivalents P=2,797,581,577 P=2,797,581,577 P=10,032,415,184 P=10,032,415,184 
Trade and other  receivables 4,925,681,584 4,925,681,584 4,355,257,059 4,355,257,059 
Due from affiliated companies – – 4,785,103 4,785,103 
AFS investments (debt 

investments) 1,177,589,987 1,177,589,987 1,341,751,679 1,341,751,679 
AFS investments (equity 

investments) 16,410,656 16,410,656 12,146,829 12,146,829 
Derivative assets – – 344,000,987 344,000,987 
 P=8,917,263,804 P=8,917,263,804 P=16,090,356,841 P=16,090,356,841 
     
  2007 2006 

Financial liabilities 
Carrying 
Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value 

         
Trade and other payables P=3,637,782,267 P=3,637,782,267  P=6,429,065,264 P=6,429,065,264 
Due to PNOC – – 350,844,177 350,844,177 
Royalty fee payable 1,733,927,164 2,083,225,515 1,944,322,923 2,129,184,108 
Long-term debt  23,092,378,906 21,231,466,800 36,831,709,967 30,577,653,733 
 P=28,464,088,337 P=26,952,474,582 P=45,555,942,331 P=39,486,747,282 
 
The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of financial 
 instruments are: 
 
Cash and other cash equivalents 
Carrying amounts approximate fair values. 
 
Trade and other receivables, due from affiliated companies, trade and other payables 
These are instruments with relatively short maturity.  Carrying amounts approximate fair values. 

AFS investments 
Fair values of debt securities are based on quoted market prices. For equity investments that are not 
quoted, the investments are carried at cost less allowance for impairment losses due to the unpredictable 
nature of future cash flows and the lack of suitable methods of arriving at a reliable fair value. 
 
Derivative instruments 
Fair values are estimated based on prices derived using the binomial pricing methodology. 
 
Long-term debt and royalty fee payable 

 Fair values are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology using the Company s current 
incremental borrowing rates for similar borrowings with maturities consistent with those remaining for the 
liability being valued, if any. 
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The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories. 

 

2007 Cash 
Loans and 

Receivables AFS 
Derivative 

Assets 
Liabilities at 

Amortized Cost Total 
FINANCIAL ASSETS       
Cash and cash equivalents P=2,797,581,577 P=  P=  P=  P=  P=2,797,581,577 
Trade and other receivables   4,351,678,817    4,351,678,817 
Trade receivable - net   4,297,224,927    4,297,224,927 
Loans and notes receivable 
(included in Other receivables)   54,453,890     54,453,890 
AFS investments (equity 
investments)     16,410,656     16,410,656 

Quoted     16,336,106      16,336,106 
Unquoted     74,550      74,550 

AFS investments (debt 
investments)     1,177,589,987      1,177,589,987 

Quoted     1,177,589,987      1,177,589,987 
        
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES       
Accounts payable - trade     3,392,254,846  3,392,254,846 
Royalty fee payable     1,733,927,166  1,733,927,166 
Long-term debt      23,092,378,906  23,092,378,906 

Total P=2,797,581,577  P=4,351,678,817  P=1,194,000,643  P=   P=28,218,560,918  P=36,561,821,955 

 

2006 Cash 
Loans and 

Receivables AFS 
Derivative 

Assets  
Liabilities at 

Amortized Cost Total 
FINANCIAL ASSETS       
Cash and cash equivalents P=10,032,415,184 P=  P=  P=  P=  P=10,032,415,184 
Trade and other receivables  4,259,439,729    4,259,439,729 
Trade receivable - net  4,232,642,072    4,232,642,072 
Loans and notes receivable 
(included in Other receivables)  26,797,657    26,797,657 
Available for sale 
investments (equity 
investments)   12,146,829   12,146,829 
Available for sale 
investments (debt 
investments)   1,341,751,679   1,341,751,679 
Derivative assets    344,000,987  344,000,987 
         

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES        
Accounts Payable - trade P=  P=  P=  P=  P=5,303,670,215 P=5,303,670,215 
Due to PNOC     350,844,177 350,844,177 
Royalty fee payable     1,944,322,923 1,944,322,923 
Long-term debt      36,831,709,967 36,831,709,967 

Total P=10,032,415,184 P=4,259,439,729 P=1,353,898,508 P=344,000,987 P=44,430,547,282 P=60,420,301,690 

 
Capital Management 
 
The primary objective of the Company s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital 
ratio in order to comply with its financial loan covenants and support its business operations.  
 
The Company manages and makes adjustment to its capital structure as it deems necessary.  To maintain 
or adjust its capital structure, the Company may increase the levels of capital contributions from its 
creditors and owners/shareholders through debt and new shares issuance, respectively.   
 

112

PNOC AR 07 05308 7pm_corctd_5-31.indd   112PNOC AR 07 05308 7pm_corctd_5-31.indd   112 5/31/08   5:46:59 PM5/31/08   5:46:59 PM



 
The Company monitors capital using the debt to equity ratio, which is long-term liabilities divided by total 
liabilities plus stockholders  equity.  The Company s policy is to keep the debt to equity ratio not more than 
70:30.  The Company s long-term liabilities include royalty fees payable (net of current portion), obligations 
to power plant contractors (net of current portion), long-term debt (net of current portion), retirement benefit 
obligation and other long-term liabilities.  Total liabilities are current liabilities (which includes trade and 
other payables, income tax payable, current portion of long-term debt and obligations to power plant 
contractors) plus long-term liabilities.  Equity includes capital stock attributable to common and preferred 
shares, unrealized gains reserve and retained earnings.  
 
Table below shows the Company s debt to equity ratio as at December 31, 2007 and 2006. 

 
 2007 2006 
Current liabilities P=6,791,327,461 P=13,750,239,296 
Noncurrent liabilities 23,426,126,799 36,267,510,508 
Stockholders  equity 34,853,280,606 27,374,712,978 

Debt to equity ratio 36.0%   46.9% 
 

43. Commitments and Contingencies 
 

STORED ENERGY  
 
On various dates, the Company entered into Addendum Agreements to the PPA for the Unified Leyte and 
GRSC for BacMan 2 projects, where any excess generation above the nominated energy or take-or-pay 
volume will be credited against payments made by NPC for the periods it was not able to take electricity or 
steam, where applicable.  As of December 31, 2007, the commitment for stored energy follows (in 
gigawatt-hours): 

 
Unified Leyte 4,326.6 
BacMan 2 - Cawayan    306.1 

 
 
44. Prior Period Adjustments 
 

The financial statements for 2006 and 2005 have been restated to effect the following prior period 
adjustments: 

 
In million pesos 

 
Effect on retained earnings as of January 31,  

increase (decrease) 
 2007 2006 2005 

Adjustment in provision for taxes (P=615.74) (P=451.65) (P=379.65)
Adjustment in accounting for 
 financial instruments and 
 embedded derivatives (963.92) (203.83) (338.63)
Net effect of recognition and    
      Reversal  of expenses 1.69 (571.55) – 

 (P=1,577.97) (P=1,227.03) (P=718.28)
 

These corrections including effects of early adoption of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 brought about an 
increase in net income in 2006 by P=80.42 million and a decrease of P=741.93 million in 2005 s net income.  
Relatively, these adjustments resulted in an increase and a decrease of the basic/diluted earnings per 
share in 2006 and 2005 by P=0.007 per share and P=0.062 per share, respectively. 
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MR. OSCAR M. LOPEZ was elected Chairman on November 29, 2007.  He also serves as 
Chairman and CEO of First Philippine Holdings Corp. (FPHC) and Chairman of Benpres 
Holdings Corporation (Benpres) and all member-companies of First Gen Corp. (First Gen) 
and First Gas groups of companies.  Through his Chairmanship of FPHC and Benpres, 
Mr. Lopez serves as Chairman of the Lopez Group of Companies.  He was Management 
Association of the Philippines’ Management Man of the Year in 2000 and one of the 
top 20 fi nalists for CNBC and TNT International’s Asia Business Leader Awards in 2004.  
Furthermore, he was the fi rst Filipino businessman to be awarded the most prestigious 
Offi cer’s Cross of the Order of Merit of the Federal Republic of Germany in 2005.  
Named by Forbes Magazine as among the “Heroes of Philanthropy” in Asia, Mr. Lopez 
is involved in several social and environmental concerns, among them, the Eugenio 
Lopez Foundation, Lopez Group Foundation, Philippine Business for Social Progress and 
Conservation International.  Mr. Lopez completed his Masters in Public Administration 
from the Littauer School of Public Administration at Harvard University, where he also 
earned his Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude).

MR. PAUL A. AQUINO has been President and CEO since 
February 2004 and Director since 2001. He is an electrical 
engineer by profession and has a master’s degree in 
business administration. Prior to his appointment in EDC, 
he was President of various companies including Dynamic 
Computer Services, Corinthian Securities and Management 
Dynamics. He also worked as consultant for Sycip, Gorres 
& Velayo from 1967 to 1969.  He also serves as an Honorary 
Consul of the Republic of Malta.

MR. JONATHAN C. RUSSELL was elected as 
Company Director on November 29, 2007.  He is a 
member of the Execom and Mancom of First Gen, 
responsible for the development of power related 
projects, both Greenfi eld and acquisition.  He was 
previously Vice-President of Generation Ventures 
Associates (GVA), an international developer of 
independent power projects based in Boston, USA 
from 1994 to 1998, responsible for the development 
of 1,720 MW of IPP projects in Asia.  Mr. Russell has 
an MBA with Distinction in International Business & 
Export Management from City University Business 
School, London, England and a Bachelor of Science 
with Honours in Chemical & Administrative Sciences 
from City University, London, England. 

MR. PETER D. GARRUCHO, JR. was elected as Company 
Director on November 29, 2007. He also sits in the boards of 
FPHC, ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation, Manila Electric 
Company, First Gen and First Gas group of companies. He 
served in the government as Secretary of the Department of 
Tourism and the Department of Trade & Industry during the 
administration of President Corazon C. Aquino.  He was also 
Executive Secretary and Presidential Adviser on Energy Affairs 
under President Fidel V. Ramos.  Mr. Garrucho has an AB-BSBA 
degree from De La Salle University and a Master of Business 
Administration degree from Stanford University.

MR. FRANCIS GILES B. PUNO was elected 
as Company Director on November 29, 2007.  He is 
Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Offi cer of 
First Gen and First Gas group of companies. He is also 
a member of the boards of First Gen Renewables, Inc., 
FPPC and Bauang Private Power Corp., and a Senior 
Vice-President of FPHC.  He worked previously with 
the Global Power and Environmental Group of The 
Chase Manhattan Bank based in Singapore.  Mr. Puno 
has a Master of Management degree from the Kellogg 
Graduate School of Management of Northwestern 
University and a Bachelor of Science degree in Business 
Management from Ateneo de Manila University.
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MR. ERNESTO B. PANTANGCO was elected as Company 
Director on November 29, 2007.  He is Senior Vice-President 
of First Gen, and President and CEO of FPPC and BPPC.  He 
also sits in the boards of  First Gen and First Gas group of 
companies.  He is Senior Vice-President of FG Luzon, FGHPC, 
First Gen Geothermal Power Corp., First Gen Visayas Hydro 
Power Corp., First Gen Mindanao Hydro Power Corp., First 
Gen Northern Energy Corp. and Red Vulcan.  He is also 
President of the Philippine Independent Power Producers 
Association (PIPPA).  Mr. Pantangco has a Bachelor of 
Science in Mechanical Engineering degree from De La Salle 
University and Master of Business Administration degree 
from Asian Institute of Management, dean’s list.  He is a 
registered mechanical engineer and placed 6th in the 1973 
board exams.

MR. FEDERICO R. LOPEZ was elected as 
Company Director on November 29, 2007.  He 
is President and CEO of First Gen and Managing 
Director for Energy of FPHC.  He is a member 
of the boards of FPHC, ABS-CBN Broadcasting 
Corporation, First Private Power Corp., and 
Bauang Private Power Corp.  He also serves as 
Director, President and CEO of First Gen and 
First Gas group of companies.  Mr. Lopez is a 
graduate of the University of Pennsylvania with 
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and 
International Relations, cum laude.

MR. RICHARD B. TANTOCO was elected as Company 
Director on November 29, 2007.  He is Executive Vice-
President and Chief Operating Offi cer of First Gen and 
First Gas group of companies.  He is also Senior Vice-
President of FPHC. Mr. Tantoco worked previously with 
management consulting fi rm Booz, Allen and Hamilton, 
Inc. in New York and London.  He has an MBA in Finance 
from the Wharton School of Business of the University 
of Pennsylvania and a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Business Management from Ateneo de Manila University 
where he graduated with honors. 

MR. FRANCIS G. ESTRADA was elected as an 
Independent Director of the Company on January 22, 
2008.  He is President and CEO of Asian Institute of 
Management (AIM) and Odyssey Capital Ventures.  He 
is a Triple A awardee and is the fi rst alumnus to serve 
as president of AIM.  For over 32 years (22 years outside 
the Philippines), he has been a prominent international 
investment banker, fi nancial adviser and fi nancial 
entrepreneur, specializing in Asia-related fi nancial 
operations.  Mr. Estrada graduated “With Distinction” 
from AIM with a Master in Business Management and 
completed the Advanced Management Program at the 
Harvard Business School. He obtained his Bachelor of 
Science in Business Administration and Bachelor of Arts 
degrees from De La Salle University. 

MR. ERIC O. RECTO was elected as an 
Independent Director of the Company on 
June 14, 2007.  He is President and CEO of 
ISM Communications Corporation and Eastern 
Telecommunications Philippines, Inc.   He is also 
Vice Chairman of PhilWeb Corporation, Director 
of Maynilad Water Services, Inc., as well as 
Independent Director of Philippine National Bank 
and Metro Pacifi c Investment Corporation.  He 
was formerly Undersecretary of Department of 
Finance handling the International Finance Group 
and the Privatization Offi ce.    Mr. Recto obtained 
his undergraduate degree in Industrial Engineering 
from the University of the Philippines and an MBA 
from the Johnson School of Cornell University.

MR. VICENTE S. PEREZ, JR was elected as an Independent 
Director of the Company on June 14, 2007.  He is also Director 
of Alternergy, Chikka, Merritt Partners, and NorthWind 
Power, and is an independent director of Nido Petroleum, SM 
Investments Corp., and ST Telemedia.  He previously served 
as Secretary of the Department of Energy from June 2001 to 
March 2005. He has over 17 years experience in investment 
banking and pursued a banking career overseas from 1983 to 
1997.  He was previously General Partner at Lazard Freres (New 
York).  A keen advocate of renewable energy, he was chairman 
of the Philippine Sinag solar car project and taught an MBA 
class on renewable energy at Yale University.  Mr. Perez holds 
a Bachelors degree in Business Economics from the University 
of the Philippines and obtained an MBA from Wharton Business 
School of the University of Pennsylvania.
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VP FOR OPERATIONS 
Marcelino M. Tongco 

VP FOR TECHNICAL SERVICES 
Manuel S. Ogena

SVP &  VP FOR ENVIRONMENT & EXTERNAL RELATIONS 
Agnes C. de Jesus 

PRESIDENT / CEO
Paul A. Aquino
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VP FOR ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Atty.  Michael A. Medado

VP FOR DRILLING
Mario L. Taguines

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND TREASURER
Fenina O.T. Rodriguez

VP FOR POWER GENERATION 
Danilo C. Catigtig
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Paul A. Aquino PRESIDENT AND CEO

Agnes C. de Jesus SVP AND VP FOR ENVIRONMENT AND EXTERNAL RELATIONS

Marcelino M. Tongco VICE PRESIDENT FOR OPERATIONS

Manuel S. Ogena VICE PRESIDENT FOR TECHNICAL SERVICES

Danilo C. Catigtig VICE PRESIDENT FOR POWER GENERATION

Michael A. Medado VICE PRESIDENT FOR ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Mario L. Taguines VICE PRESIDENT FOR DRILLING

Fenina O. T. Rodriguez CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER/TREASURER

Roberto V. San Jose CORPORATE SECRETARY

Ana Maria A. Katigbak-Lim ASSISTANT CORPORATE SECRETARY

Ellsworth R. Lucero SENIOR MANAGER, POWER PLANT OPERATIONS

Gino P. de la Cruz RESIDENT MANAGER, NORTHERN NEGROS GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD

Dwight A. Maxino RESIDENT MANAGER, SOUTHERN NEGROS GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD

Manuel C. Paete RESIDENT MANAGER, LEYTE GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD

Liberato S. Virata RESIDENT MANAGER, BACMAN GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD

Alejandro V. Catacutan OIC RESIDENT MANAGER, MINDANAO GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD

Michael R. Rodriguez SENIOR MANAGER, INTERNAL AUDIT

Noel D. Salonga SENIOR MANAGER AND ASSISTANT TO THE PRESIDENT

Francis M. Dolor SENIOR MANAGER, PLANNING AND CONTROL DIVISION

Francisco A. Palafox SENIOR MANAGER AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Elvira L. Punsalan SENIOR MANAGER, SUPPLY, PROCUREMENT AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT DIVISION

Erudito S. Recio SENIOR MANAGER, INVESTOR RELATIONS

Wilfredo T. Capil SENIOR MANAGER, DRILLING

Ramonchito Cedric M. Malate SENIOR MANAGER, RESERVOIR ENGINEERING

Martin Jude V. Lacambra  SENIOR MANAGER, ENGINEERING, PROCUREMENT & DESIGN DIVISION
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List of Banks as of December 31, 2007
 
DOMESTIC         
 
1 Banco de Oro Universal Bank  
2 Bank of the Philippine Islands  
3 Development Bank of the Phils.  
4 Export & Industry Bank  
5 Land Bank of the Philippines  
6 Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corp.
7 Philippine National Bank  
8 J.P. Morgan Chase Bank
9 Security Banking Corporation  
10 Union Bank
  
FOREIGN
1 ABN-Amro Bank
2 Australia & New Zealand Bank
3 Citibank, N.A.
4 Calyon Corporate and Investment Bank
5 Deutsche Bank
6 Metropolitan Bank & Trust Co. 
7 ING Bank
8 Rizal Commercial Banking Corp.
9 Mizuho Corporate Bank
10 Standard Chartered Bank
11 The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd.
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HEAD OFFICES

Tel: (632) 893-6001 to 47, 893-1320 to 64
Fax: (632) 840-1575
www.energy.com.ph

Energy Research and Development Center
Commonwealth Ave., Diliman, Quezon City
Tel.: (632) 929-7611
Fax: (632) 929-3412

PROJECT SITE OFFICES

B  MANITO GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD 
Palayang Bayan, Manito, Albay
Tel.: (632) 893-6001 loc. 2405
Telefax: 812-3841

LEYTE GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD
Tongonan, Kananga, Leyte
Tel.: (632) 893-6001 loc. 2400/2401/2402
Telefax: 812-4803

SOUTHERN NEGROS GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD
Ticala, Valencia, Negros Oriental
Tel.: (632) 893-6001 loc. 2403
Telefax: 812-9810

MINDANAO GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD
Ilomavis, Kidapawan City, North Cotabato
Tel.: (632) 893-6001 loc. 2404
Telefax: 812-3129

NORTHERN NEGROS GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION FIELD
Bago City, Negros Occidental
Tel.: (632) 893-6001 loc. 2406
Telefax: 812-8685

NORTHERN LUZON WIND  POWER PROJECT
Brgy. Saoit, Burgos, Ilocos Norte
Contact Nos.: 09195401863
                     09195470576

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES AND ASSISTANCE
For questions or comments regarding dividend pay-
ments, change of address, account status, lost or dam-
aged stock certifi cates, please get in touch with:

INVESTOR RELATIONS OFFICE

5/F Bldg. 5 PNOC EDC 
Merritt Road, Fort Bonifacio
Taguig City
Telefax: (632) 840-1586
E-mail: recio@energy.com.ph

Or with our stock transfer agent:

SECURITIES TRANSFER  SERVICES, INC. (STSI)
4th Floor, Benpres Building, 
Meralco Avenue cor. Exchange Road, 
Ortigas Center
Pasig City, Philippines
P.O. Box No. 13951 Ortigas Center
Post Offi ce, Pasig City
Tel.: (632) 449-6149 to 58
Fax: (632) 632-7148

The Company’s common equity was listed in the Philippine 
Stock Exchange on December 13, 2006 at an Initial Public 
Offering price of P3.20 per share.

For other inquiries, please write or call:

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT
2/F Bldg. 5 PNOC EDC
Merritt Road, Fort Bonifacio
Taguig City
Telefax: (632) 840-2337
E-mail: diazderi@energy.com.ph

Annual reports, quarterly reports and other information 
on PNOC EDC can be downloaded from our internet website  

www.energy.com.ph
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Merritt Road,Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

ACON-
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 D E F I N I T I O N S
AFS Investments Available-for-Sale Investments
AGC Audit and Governance Committee
Availability Factor A measure (expressed as a percentage) of the 
 available generation of a plant over a defi ned
 period of time compared with the maximum 
 possible available generation of the plant over 
 the same period
BFA Baslay Farmers Association
BGPF Bacman Geothermal Production Field
BIR Bureau of Internal Revenue
BOD Board of Directors
BOT Build-Operate-Transfer scheme
BPTL Below Poverty Threshold Level
BSP Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
CalEnergy California Energy Company, Inc
CBA Collective Bargaining Agreement
CB-BOL Central Bank – Board of Liquidators 
CBU Capital build-up
CDM Clean Development Mechanism
CFSA Community Forest Stewardship Agreement
CG Corporate Governance
CME Cocomethyl ester
CPD Community Partnerships Department
CSR Corporate Social Responsibility
CSRC Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
DA Department of Agriculture
DENR Department of Environment and
 Natural Resources
DepEd Department of Education
DOE Department of Energy
DOLE Department of Labor and Employment
DTI Department of Trade and Industry
EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
 Depreciation and Amortization
ECA Energy Conversion Agreement
ECC Environmental Compliance Certifi cate
EDD Energy Drilling Division
EMB Environmental Management Bureau
EMD Environmental Management Department
EPC Engineering, Procurement and Construction
EPIRA  Electric Power Industry Reform Act of 2001 
EPS Earnings Per Share 
ERC Energy Regulatory Commission
ERDD Energy Research and Development Department
ERPA Emissions Reduction Purchase Agreement 
EURO European Dollars
FCRS Fluid Collection and Recycling System
FG First Gen Corporation
FPHC First Philippine Holdings Corporation
Fuji Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.
GHG Greenhouse gas
GSC Geothermal Service Contract
GWh Gigawatthours; 1,000,000,000 
 watthours; 1,000 MWh
GOCC Government Owned and Controlled Corporation
GRSC Geothermal Resources Sales Contract
GSIS Government Service Insurance System 
IBJ International Bank of Japan 
IBRD International Bank for Reconstruction
 and Development
ICD Institute of Corporate Directors
IFRIC International Financial Reporting
 Interpretations Committee
IRR Implementing Rules and Regulations
JBIC Japan Bank for International Cooperation

 D E F I N I T I O N S
KWh Kilowatthour; 1,000 watthours
LCF League of Corporate Foundations
LGPF Leyte Geothermal Production Field
LGU Local Government Unit
LMC Lihir Management Co. Pty. Ltd.
LTA Lost Time Accident
Marubeni Marubeni Corporation 
MEOT Minimum Energy Off Take agreement 
MGPF Mindanao Geothermal Production Field
MMB Million Barrels
MMBFOE Million Barrels of Fuel Oil Equivalent
MW Megawatt
MWh Megawatthour; one million watthours
NCC Nominations and Compensation Committee
NCDMF Netherlands Clean Development Mechanism Facility 
NG National Government or the Republic of the 
 Philippines or the ROP
NNG
NPC National Power Corporation
NRE New and Renewable Energy 
Opscomm Operations Committee
Ormat Ormat Inc.
Oxbow Oxbow Power Corporation
PAMB Protected Area Management Board
PAS Philippine Accounting Standards 
PCIRBs Principal Collateralized Interest Reduction Bonds 
Peso or PhP  Philippine Peso, the lawful currency of the Republic 
 of the Philippines
PFRS Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PGI Philippine Geothermal Incorporated
PLC Publicly Listed Company
PME Professional Mechanical Engineers
PNOC Philippine National Oil Company
PNOC EDC 
or the Company PNOC Energy Development Corporation
PNS/ISO Philippine National Standard/International 
 Standardization Organization
PPA Power Purchase Agreement
PSALM Power Sector Assets and Liabilities
 Management Corporation
PSE Philippine Stock Exchange
PT Union Professional/Technical Union
RE Coalition Renewable Energy Coalition
Red Vulcan 
Holdings Corp. Majority Owner of PNOC EDC shares of stocks
RMC Risk Management Committee
ROP Republic of the Philippines or National Government
SART Site Emergency Response Team
SEC Securities and Exchange Commission
SFE Schools for Excellence
SHAPES Safety and Health Association of the Philippine 
 Energy Sector
SNGPF Southern Negros Geothermal Production Field
SSA Steam Sales Agreement
Subsidiary PNOC EDC is a subsidiary of Red Vulcan Holdings 
 which owns a majority of the outstanding
 capital stock
Tongonan 1 112.5-MW geothermal power plant in 
 Tongonan, Leyte
TOFA Tongonan Farmers Association
Transco National Transmission Company or NTC
 US dollar or US$ United States dollar, 
 the lawful  currency of the United 
 States of America
USD US Dollar
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 Northern Negros Geothermal Production FieldPF
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THE THEME OF THE EDC 2007 ANNUAL REPORT IS A 

STATEMENT OF OUR REBIRTH AS A FULL-FLEDGED PRIVATE 

COMPANY, AND A RENEWAL OF OUR TIME-HONORED PROMISE 

OF PROVIDING SUSTAINABLE ENERGY RESOURCES.  WE 

ARE REBORN INTO THE TIDE OF GLOBALIZATION PRIMED 

TO COMPETE AND GEARED UP TO ACHIEVE OUR VISION 

OF BECOMING A WORLD-CLASS GEOTHERMAL ENERGY 

COMPANY. IN 2007, WE CELEBRATED MILESTONES AND 

MADE A GIANT LEAP AS WE GROW INTO THE BUSINESS OF 

POWER GENERATION.
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